

भारतीय लघु उद्योग विकास बैंक Small Industries Development Bank of India

आईटी सुरक्षा नीति और साइबर सुरक्षा नीति की समीक्षा के लिए परामर्शदाता की नियुक्ति के लिए प्रस्ताव हेतु अनुरोध (आरएफपी) Request for Proposal for Appointment of Consultants for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

टेंडर जारी करने की तिथि और संख्या / Tender Issue Date and No.

December 04, 2020 RfP No.400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD

Issued by:

भारतीय लघु उद्योग विकास बैंक स्वावलंबन भवन, सी-11, जी ब्लाक, बांद्रा कुर्ला काम्प्लेक्स, बांद्रा (पू.), **मम्बई – 400051**

SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA Swavalamban Bhavan, C-11, 'G' Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), **Mumbai - 400 051**

Notice

This document is the property of Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI). It may not be copied, distributed or recorded on any medium, electronic or otherwise, without SIDBI's written permission. Use of contents given in this document, even by the authorized personnel/agencies for any other purpose other than the purpose specified herein, is strictly prohibited as it shall amount to copyright violation and thus shall be punishable under the Indian law.

Glossary

Acronym	Description	
BG	Bank Guarantee	
DC	Data Centre	
DR	Disaster Recovery	
EMD	Earnest Money Deposit	
ITV	nformation Technology Vertical	
LOI	Letter of Intent	
PO	Purchase Order	
RfP	Request for Proposal	
RiMV	Risk Management Vertical	
CISO	Chief Information Security Officer	

Table of Contents

1.CRITICAL INFORMATION		
2.IN	FRODUCTION AND DISCLAIMERS	11
2.1	ABOUT SIDBI	11
2.2	PURPOSE OF RFP	11
2.3	Information Provided	11
2.4	DISCLAIMER	
2.5	COSTS TO BE BORNE BY RESPONDENTS	
2.6	No Legal Relationship	
2.7	RECIPIENT OBLIGATION TO INFORM ITSELF	
2.8 2.9	EVALUATION OF OFFERS	
	ERRORS AND OMISSIONS	
	ACCEPTANCE OF TERMS	
	REQUESTS FOR PROPOSAL	
	Notification	
2.14	Proposal Ownership	14
2.15	Non-Transferable Offer	14
3.INF	FORMATION TO BIDDERS	15
3.1	BID PRICE	15
3.2	PUBLIC PROCUREMENT POLICY ON MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES (MSES)	
3.3	EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT (EMD)	
3.4	BID SUBMISSION CLOSING DATE	
3.5	RECEIVING OF RFP RESPONSE	16
3.6	REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION	
3.7	Pre-Bid Meeting	
3.8	DISQUALIFICATION	
3.9	SELECTION PROCESS	
	DETAILS OF BIDS TO BE SUBMITTED	
	AUTHORISED SIGNATORY	
4.SC	OPE OF WORK AND DELIVERABLES	
4.1	Scope of Work	
4.2	DELIVERABLES:	
4.3	RESOURCE DEPLOYMENT	
4.4 4.5	RESOURCE REPLACEMENT	
4.5	PROFESSIONALISM	
4.7	ADHERENCE TO STANDARDS	
4.8	SIDBI RESPONSIBILITY	
5.EL	IGIBILITY CRITERIA AND EVALUATION METHODOLOGY	26
5.1	EVALUATION CRITERIA	
5.2	EVALUATION METHODOLOGY	
	RMS AND CONDITIONS	
6.1	General	
6.2	DEFINITIONS	
6.3	AMENDMENT TO THE RFP	
6.4	LANGUAGE OF BID	
6.5	COMMERCIAL BID	

6.6	EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT (EMD)	
6.7	DETAILS OF SIDBI ACCOUNT	
6.8	Period of Validity of Bids	
6.9	DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF BIDS	
	LATE BIDS	
	Modification And/ Or Withdrawal of Bids	
6.12	OPENING OF BIDS BY THE BANK	33
6.13	BID EVALUATION	33
6.14	ARITHMETIC ERRORS CORRECTION	34
6.15	No Commitment to Accept Lowest or Any Offer	34
6.16	CONDITIONAL BIDS	34
6.17	CONTACTING THE BANK	34
6.18	AWARD OF CONTRACT	35
6.19	Non-Disclosure Agreement	35
6.20	OWNERSHIP OF DELIVERED PRODUCT / SERVICES	35
6.21	CORRUPT AND FRAUDULENT PRACTICE	35
6.22	USE OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATION	36
6.23	SUBCONTRACTS	36
6.24	EXPENSES	36
	TERMS OF PAYMENT	
	APPLICABLE LAWS	
6.27	Taxes and Duties	37
	FORFEITURE OF PERFORMANCE SECURITY	
	COMMENCEMENT OF SERVICES	
	TERMINATION OF CONTRACT	
	PAYMENT IN CASE OF TERMINATION OF ASSIGNMENT	
	Penalty for Default in Services	
	NO EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE RELATIONSHIP	
	FORCE MAJEURE	
	RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES	
	IPR Infringement	
	INDEMNITY	
	LIMITATION OF LIABILITIES	
	RIGHTS TO VISIT	
	Audit	
	GRIEVANCES REDRESSAL MECHANISM	
	MISCELLANEOUS	
		4.
	SUBCONTRACTING	
	SUBCONTRACTING	44
6.44	Business Continuity	45
6.44 6.45	Business Continuity	42 45 45
6.44 6.45 6.46	Business Continuity Violation of terms	45 45 45 45
6.44 6.45 6.46 6.47	BUSINESS CONTINUITY	45 45 45 45
6.44 6.45 6.46 6.47 6.48	BUSINESS CONTINUITY	4! 4! 4! 4! 4!
6.44 6.45 6.46 6.47 6.48 6.49	BUSINESS CONTINUITY VIOLATION OF TERMS COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS RIGHT OF PUBLICITY CONFLICT OF INTEREST NO SET-OFF, COUNTER-CLAIM AND CROSS CLAIMS	4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4!
6.44 6.45 6.46 6.47 6.48 6.49 6.50	BUSINESS CONTINUITY VIOLATION OF TERMS COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS RIGHT OF PUBLICITY CONFLICT OF INTEREST NO SET-OFF, COUNTER-CLAIM AND CROSS CLAIMS GST LAW	45 45 45 45 45 46 46 46
6.44 6.45 6.46 6.47 6.48 6.49 6.50 6.51	BUSINESS CONTINUITY	45 45 45 45 46 46 46 46
6.44 6.45 6.46 6.47 6.48 6.49 6.50 6.51 6.52	BUSINESS CONTINUITY VIOLATION OF TERMS COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS RIGHT OF PUBLICITY CONFLICT OF INTEREST NO SET-OFF, COUNTER-CLAIM AND CROSS CLAIMS GST LAW NON-ASSIGNMENT NO THIRD PARTY RIGHTS	4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4
6.44 6.45 6.46 6.47 6.48 6.50 6.51 6.52 6.53	BUSINESS CONTINUITY	4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4
6.44 6.45 6.46 6.47 6.48 6.50 6.51 6.52 6.53 6.54	BUSINESS CONTINUITY	45 45 45 45 46 46 47 47 47 47
6.44 6.45 6.46 6.47 6.48 6.50 6.51 6.52 6.53 6.54 6.55	BUSINESS CONTINUITY VIOLATION OF TERMS COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS RIGHT OF PUBLICITY CONFLICT OF INTEREST NO SET-OFF, COUNTER-CLAIM AND CROSS CLAIMS GST LAW NON-ASSIGNMENT NO THIRD PARTY RIGHTS TAKEN / BROUGHT OVER OF COMPANY / FIRM NOTIFICATION OF AWARDS. TIME FRAME	4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4! 4
6.44 6.45 6.46 6.47 6.48 6.50 6.51 6.52 6.53 6.54 6.55 6.56	BUSINESS CONTINUITY VIOLATION OF TERMS COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS RIGHT OF PUBLICITY CONFLICT OF INTEREST NO SET-OFF, COUNTER-CLAIM AND CROSS CLAIMS GST LAW NON-ASSIGNMENT NO THIRD PARTY RIGHTS TAKEN / BROUGHT OVER OF COMPANY / FIRM NOTIFICATION OF AWARDS TIME FRAME REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES	45 45 45 45 46 46 47 47 48 48
6.44 6.45 6.46 6.47 6.48 6.50 6.51 6.52 6.53 6.54 6.55 6.56 6.57	BUSINESS CONTINUITY VIOLATION OF TERMS COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS RIGHT OF PUBLICITY CONFLICT OF INTEREST NO SET-OFF, COUNTER-CLAIM AND CROSS CLAIMS GST LAW NON-ASSIGNMENT NO THIRD PARTY RIGHTS TAKEN / BROUGHT OVER OF COMPANY / FIRM NOTIFICATION OF AWARDS TIME FRAME REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. ANNEXURE-I : BID COVERING LETTER	45 45 45 46 46 47 47 47 48 48 50
6.44 6.45 6.46 6.47 6.48 6.50 6.51 6.52 6.55 6.56 6.57 6.58	BUSINESS CONTINUITY VIOLATION OF TERMS COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS RIGHT OF PUBLICITY CONFLICT OF INTEREST NO SET-OFF, COUNTER-CLAIM AND CROSS CLAIMS GST LAW NON-ASSIGNMENT NO THIRD PARTY RIGHTS TAKEN / BROUGHT OVER OF COMPANY / FIRM NOTIFICATION OF AWARDS TIME FRAME REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES	45 45 45 45 46 47 47 48 48 50 52

6.61	ANNEXURE-V: LETTER OF COMPETENCE	.60
6.62	Annexure–VI: Power of Attorney	.61
6.63	ANNEXURE-VII: LETTER OF CONFORMITY	62
6.64	Annexure-VIII - Bank Guarantee	64
6.65	ANNEXURE-IX: Non-Disclosure Agreement	.66
6.66	ANNEXURE-X: BANK MANDATE FORM	.68
6.67	ANNEXURE-XI: STATEMENT OF DEVIATIONS	.71
6.68	ANNEXURE-XII: RESOURCE CREDENTIALS	.72
6.69	ANNEXURE-XIII: UNDERTAKING FOR CENTRAL MINIMUM WAGES ACT & LABOUR LAWS	.73
6.70	ANNEXURE-XIV UNDERTAKING LETTER FOR GST LAW	.74
6 71	ANNIEVIDE VV · COMMEDCIAL RID	75

1. Critical Information

(RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Dated December 04, 2020)

SI. No. क्र.सं.	Events / कार्यक्रम	Date/ तिथि	Time/ समय
1	Last date for seeking clarifications for pre-bid meeting/ पूर्व-बोलीबैठक के लिए स्पष्टीकरणकी मांगकी अंतिम तिथि	08/12/2020	04:00pm
2	Pre Bid meeting through Microsoft Teams Meeting (In view of the pandemic situation and restrictions in physical meetings, the Bank would hold an online pre-bid meeting through Microsoft Teams Application)	10/12/2020	04:00pm
	Hosting of clarifications in Bank's website and CPP portal for queries asked till the conclusion of the pre-bid meeting	14/12/2020	06:00pm
	No clarifications would be given after p	pre-bid meeting / पूर्व-बोली बैठक	के बाद कोई
	स्पष्टीकरण नहीं दिया जाएगा		
3	Last date for submission of bids/ बोली जमा करने की अंतिम तिथि	17/12/2020	3:30pm
4	Address for Bid Submission/ बोली जमा करने का पता	महाप्रबंधक (जोखिमप्रबंधन उद्भाग) भारतीय लघु उद्योग विकास बैंक, स्वावलंबन भवन, प्लॉट नंबर सं ब्लॉक, बांद्रा कुर्ला कॉम्प्लेक्स, बांद्र मुंबई - 400051 फोन : 022-67531142 / 8146 General Manager (RiMV), Small Industries Developn of India, Swavalamban Bh No. C-11, 'G' Block, Ban Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400051 Phone: 022-67531142 / 815	, गी -11, 'जी' ग (पूर्व), 5563423 nent Bank avan, Plot ndra Kurla

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: Decemb	per 04, 2020	
RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Pol Policy	licy and Cyber Security	Page :7 of 75

5	Date & Time of Opening of Minimum Eligibility bid / न्यूनतम बोली खोलने की तिथि व समय	17/12/2020 At Mumbai office address mentioned above	4:30pm
6	Date and time of opening of commercial bids / वाणिज्यिक बोली खोलने की तिथि व समय	To be intimated at a later date बाद में सूचित किया जायेगा	
7	Bid Validity/ बोली के वैधता	180 days from the last da submission. बोली जमा करने की अंतिम तिथि तक	
8	Contact details of SIDBI officials सिडबी अधिकारियों के संपर्क विवरण	राघवा राच्री, सीआईएसओ एवं उप (सिस्टम्स) भारतीय लघु उद्योग विकास बैंक, ओवर्सीस टावेर्स, 756येल, अन्न र चेन्नई-600002, तमिल नाडु फोन : 044-66636024 / 9892 Shri Raghava Rachuri, CISC (Systems) Small Industries Developm of India, Overseas Towers, 756-L, And Chennai – 600002, Tamil N Phone: 044-66636024 / 989 Email id : raghava@sidbi.in श्री रमेश चन्द्र, वैकल्पिक सीआईए महाप्रबन्धक भारतीय लघु उद्योग विकास बैंक, 15, अशोक मार्ग, लखनऊ -22 फोन :- 0522- 4259763, Ex मोबाइल : 7600529937 Shri Ramesh Chandra Deputy General Mana Alternate CISO SIDBI Tower, 15 Asho Lucknow, 226001 Telephone: +91 - 0522-Extn. 763 Email : rameshchandra@sid	तलाई 142015 Pand DGM nent Bank nna Salai, adu 92142015 सओ एवं उप 6001 ktn. 763 ger and ok Marg, 4259763,

		श्रीमती चन्द्र वदना ,
		Smt. Tamiri Chandra Vadana, Mgr, RiMV Small Industries Development Bank of India, Swavalamban Bhavan, Plot No. C-11, 'G' Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400051, Maharashtra Phone: 9819838431 Email id : vadana@sidbi.in श्रीमथी तमिरि चंद्र वदना, प्रबंधक भारतीय लघु उद्योग विकास बैंक, स्वावलंबन भवन, प्लॉट नंबर सी -11, 'जी' ब्लॉक, बांद्रा कुर्ला कॉम्प्लेक्स, बांद्रा (पूर्व),
		मुंबई - 400051 फोन : 9819838431
9	बयानाजमाराशि/ Earnest Money Deposit	` 25,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Thousand only)
10	Tender fee (Non-Refundable and inclusive of GST) / टेंडर मूल्य (नॉन रीफ़ण्डेबल और जीएसटी को मिलाकर).	` 2,000/- (Rupees Two Thousand only)

1.2. **Note**

- 1.2.1 SIDBI reserves the right to change dates without assigning any reasons thereof. Intimation of the same shall be notified on the Bank's website.
- 1.2.2 If a holiday is declared on the dates mentioned above, the tender shall be received / opened on the next working day at the same time specified above and at the same venue unless communicated otherwise.

2. Introduction and Disclaimers

2.1 About SIDBI

Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) was established in April 1990.

The mission of SIDBI is to empower the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector with a view to contributing to the process of economic growth, employment generation and balanced regional development having objective to serve as a single window for meeting financial and developmental needs of MSME sector.

The four basic objectives set out in the SIDBI Charter are Financing, Promotion, Development and Co-ordination for orderly growth of industry in the MSME sector. The Charter has provided SIDBI considerable flexibility for adopting appropriate operational strategies to meet these objectives. The activities of SIDBI, as they have evolved over the period of time, now meet almost all the requirements of sector which fall into a wide spectrum constituting modern and technologically superior units at one end and traditional units at the other.

The bank provides its services through a network of Regional and Branch offices located all over India. Detailed information on the functions of the bank is provided on the bank's website, **www.sidbi.in**.

2.2 Purpose of RfP

- 1. This Request for Proposal document ("RfP document" or "RfP" or "RFP") has been prepared solely for the purpose of appointment of Consultant for reveiw of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy.
- 2. This RFP document is not a recommendation, offer or invitation to enter into a contract, agreement or any other arrangement in respect of the services. The provision of the services is subject to observance of selection process and appropriate documentation being agreed between the Bank and any successful bidder as identified by the Bank after completion of the selection process.

The shortlisted consulting firm or its subsidiaries/group companies will not be eligible to participate in any other tender in connection with implementation / procurement exercise out of recommendation of this consulting project.

2.3 Information Provided

The RfP document contains statements derived from information that is believed to be relevant at the date but does not purport to provide all of the information that may be necessary or desirable to enable an intending contracting party to determine whether or not to enter into a contract or arrangement with SIDBI. Neither SIDBI nor any of its employees, agents, contractors, or advisers gives any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of any information or statement given or made in this document. Neither SIDBI nor any of its employees, agents, contractors, or advisers have carried out or will carry

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security

Policy

out an independent audit or verification exercise in relation to the contents of any part of the document.

2.4 Disclaimer

Subject to any law to the contrary, and to the maximum extent permitted by law, SIDBI and its officers, employees, contractors, agents, and advisers disclaim all liability from any loss or damage (whether foreseeable or not) suffered by any person acting on or refraining from acting because of any information including forecasts, statements, estimates, or projections contained in this RfP document or conduct ancillary to it whether or not the loss or damage arises in connection with any negligence, omission, default, lack of care or misrepresentation on the part of SIDBI or any of its officers, employees, contractors, agents, or advisers.

2.5 Costs to be borne by Respondents

All costs and expenses incurred by Respondents in any way associated with the development, preparation, and submission of responses, including but not limited to; the attendance at meetings, discussions, demonstrations/ presentations, etc. and providing any additional information required by SIDBI, will be borne entirely and exclusively by the Respondent.

2.6 No Legal Relationship

No binding legal relationship will exist between any of the Respondents and SIDBI until the issues of purchase order / execution of a contractual agreement.

2.7 Recipient Obligation to inform itself

The Recipient must conduct its own investigation and analysis regarding any information contained in the RfP document and the meaning and impact of that information.

2.8 Evaluation of Offers

The issuance of RfP document is merely an invitation of offers and must not be construed as any agreement or contract or arrangement nor would it be construed as any investigation or review carried out by a Recipient. The Recipient unconditionally acknowledges by submitting its response to this RFP document that it has not relied on any idea, information, statement, representation, or warranty given in this RFP document.

2.9 Acceptance of Selection Process

Each Recipient having responded to this RfP acknowledges having read, understood and accepts the selection & evaluation process mentioned in this RfP document. The Recipient ceases to have any option to object

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

Page :12 of 75

against any of these processes at any stage subsequent to submission of its responses to this RfP.

2.10 Errors and Omissions

Each Recipient should notify SIDBI of any error, omission, or discrepancy found in this RfP document but not later than 2 working days prior to the due date for submission of bids.

2.11 Acceptance of Terms

Recipient will, by responding to SIDBI for RfP, be deemed to have accepted the terms as stated in this RfP.

2.12 Requests for Proposal

1. Recipients are required to direct all communications related to this RfP, through the Nominated Point of Contact person:

Contact : Shri Raghava Rachuri

Position : Deputy General Manager (Systems) & CISO

Email : raghava@sidbi.in Telephone : +91 - 44- 6663 6024

Contact : Shri Ramesh Chandra

Position : Deputy General Manager and Alternate CISO

Email: rameshchandra@sidbi.in

Telephone: +91 - 0522- 4259763, Extn. 763

Contact : Smt Tamiri Chandra Vadana

Position : Manager

Email : vadana@sidbi.in Telephone : 9819838431

- SIDBI may, in its absolute discretion, seek additional information or material from any Respondents after the RfP closes and all such information and material provided must be taken to form part of that Respondent's response.
- 3. Respondents should provide details of their contact person, telephone, fax, email and full address(s) to ensure that replies to RfP could be conveyed promptly. These details should also be written/ printed without fail on each of the bids envelopes as well.
- 4. SIDBI may, in its absolute discretion, engage in discussion with any Respondent (or simultaneously with more than one Respondent) after the RfP closes to improve or clarify any response.

2.13 Notification

SIDBI will notify all short-listed Respondents in writing or by e-mail as soon as practicable about the outcome of their RfP response. SIDBI is not obliged to provide any reasons for any such acceptance or rejection!

2.14 Proposal Ownership

The proposal and all supporting documentation submitted by the vendors shall become the property of SIDBI. The Bidders shall be deemed to license, and grant all rights to the Bank, to reproduce the whole or any portion of their Bid document for the purpose of evaluation and to disclose the contents of submission for regulatory and legal requirements.

2.15 Non-Transferable Offer

This RfP is not transferable. Only the bidder who has submitted the bid will be eligible for participation in the evaluation process.

3. Information to Bidders

The Bidders are expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms and specifications in the bidding documents. Failure to furnish all information required by the bidding documents may result in the rejection of its bid and will be at the bidder's own risk.

3.1 Bid Price

Bidders to submit Non-refundable Bid Price / Tender Form Cost mentioned in "Critical Information" section of this RfP, by way of Banker's Cheque/Demand Draft/ Pay Order drawn on a scheduled commercial bank, favouring 'Small Industries Development Bank of India', payable at Mumbai **OR** direct deposit to SIDBI account and submission of proof along with bid. The Bank may, at its discretion, reject any Bidder where the Bid Price / Tender Form Cost has not been furnished with the RFP response.

3.2 Public Procurement Policy on Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs)

- 1. SIDBI is governed by provisions of the Public Procurement Policy for Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs) as circulated by The Ministry of MSME, Gol 2.5.1. These provisions shall be applicable to Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs) registered with District Industries Centers or Khadi and Village Industries Commission or Khadi and Village Industries Board or Coir Board or National Small Industries Corporation or Directorate of Handicrafts and Handloom or any other body specified by Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs).
- 2. Such MSEs would be entitled for exemption from furnishing tender fee and earnest money deposit (EMD). In case of any issue on the subject matter, the MSE's may approach the tender inviting authority to resolve their grievances. Agencies/ Bidders desirous of availing exemptions/ preference under above provisions should submit a self- attested certified copy of proof of Registration as MSEs / and ownership of the same by SC/ST along with the bid response to this tender/RfP.
- 3. Bidder is required to inform its MSME status, if applicable, as per <u>Gazette Notification S.O. 2119 (E) dated June 26, 2020</u> and further amendments to the same, if any.

3.3 Earnest Money Deposit (EMD)

All the responses must be accompanied by a refundable interest free security deposit. Details of the EMD are given in 'Critical Information' mentioned above in **Sno.1** of the RfP.

3.4 Bid Submission Closing Date

RfP response should be received by SIDBI not later than date and time mentioned in 'Critical Information' section above, at SIDBI Office premises located at Mumbai.

In the event of the specified date for the submission of bids, being declared a holiday for the Bank, the bids will be received up to the appointed time on the next working day.

The Bank may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for submission of Bids by amending the Bid Documents, in which case, all rights and obligations of the Bank and Bidders previously subject to the deadline will thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.

3.5 Receiving of RfP Response

Receiving of RfP response will be recorded by SIDBI in a 'Bid Receipt Register' kept for the purpose upon receiving the RFP response. The submission of the response should be in the format outlined in this RFP and should be submitted preferable through hand delivery. If the submission to this RFP does not include all the documents and information required or is incomplete or submission is through Fax mode, the RFP is liable to be summarily rejected. All submissions, including any accompanying documents, will become the property of Bank. The Recipient shall be deemed to have licensed, and granted all rights to the Bank to reproduce the whole or any portion of their submission for the purpose of evaluation and to disclose and/or use the contents of the submission as the basis for any resulting RFP process, notwithstanding any copyright or other intellectual property right of the Recipient that may subsist in the submission or accompanying documents.

3.6 Requests for information

- 1. Recipients are required to direct all communications for any clarification related to this RFP, to the designated Bank officials and must communicate the same in writing by the time mentioned in 'Critical Information' section before. No query / clarification would be entertained over phone.
- 2. All queries relating to the RFP, technical or otherwise, must be in writing only and may be sent via email. The Bank will try to reply, without any obligation in respect thereof, every reasonable query raised by the Recipients in the manner specified.

However, the Bank will not answer any communication reaching the bank later than the time stipulated for the purpose.

3. The Bank may in its absolute discretion seek, but under no obligation to seek, additional information or material from any Respondents after the RFP closes and all such information and material provided must be taken to form part of that Respondent's response. Respondents should invariably

- provide details of their email address as responses to queries will be provided to all Respondents via email.
- 4. The Bank may in its sole and absolute discretion engage in discussion with any Respondent (or simultaneously with more than one Respondent) after the RFP closes to clarify any response.

3.7 Pre-Bid Meeting

- 1. In view of the pandemic situation and restrictions in physical meetings, the Bank would hold an online pre-bid meeting through Microsoft Teams Application on the date and time mentioned in 'Critical Information' section above. Purpose of the meeting is to bring utmost clarity on the scope of work and terms of the RFP being floated. The Bidders are expected to use the platform to have all their queries answered. No query will be entertained after the pre-bid meeting.
- 2. All pre-bid queries to be addressed to the bank officials as per contact details given in 'Critical Information' section of RfP.
- 3. It would be the responsibility of the Bidders to confirm the email address of bidder (one person per bidder) to SIDBI by email to participate in the online meeting. An invitation to participate in the online meeting will be forwarded by SIDBI to the bidders.
- 4. Clarification sought by bidder should be made in writing (Letter/E-mail etc) and submitted on or before the date as indicated in the 'Critical Information' section. Bank has discretion to consider any other queries raised by the bidder's representative during the pre-bid meeting.
- 5. The text of the clarifications asked (without identifying the source of enquiry) and the response given by the Bank, together with amendment to the bidding document, if any, will be posted on the Bank (www.sidbi.in) website and Central Public Procurement Portal (CPPP) within 07 working days of the pre-bid meeting. It would be responsibility of the bidder to check the websites before final submission of bids.
- 6. If SIDBI, in its absolute discretion, deems that the originator of the question will gain an advantage by a response to a question, then SIDBI reserves the right to communicate such response to all Respondents.
- 7. The bank, at its discretion, will facilitate the meeting through electronic mode (viz., Microsoft Teams), based on the circumstances emanating on the date of pre-bid meeting.

3.8 Disqualification

Any form of canvassing/ lobbying/ influence/ query regarding short listing, status etc. will result in a disqualification.

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

Page :17 of 75

3.9 Selection process

Successful Bidder will be selected through two bids evaluation process:

- i. Minimum Eligibility Criteria evaluation
- ii. Commercial evaluation

3.10 Details of Bids to be submitted

Bidders are required to submit their responses in TWO envelopes, with contents of each as under:

Envolono	Bid Contents	No. of Copies	Labol of
Envelope No.	Dia Contents	No. of Copies	Label of Envelope
I	Minimum Eligibility Bid	Hardcopy - 1	"Minimum
'		and	Eligibility Bid
	i. Bid Covering letter as per format prescribed in	Soft copy on	for the
	Annexure-I	pen drive or	appointment of the consultant
	ii. Prequalification/Minimum	CD	for Review of IT
	Eligibility Criteria as per		Security Policy
	format prescribed in		and Cyber
	Annexure-II		Security Policy.
	iii. Response to Minimum		
	Eligibility Bid as per format prescribed in Annexure-III		
	iv. DDs / Instruments towards		
	bid price.		
	v. Declaration regarding clean		
	track record, as per format		
	prescribed in Annexure-IV .		
	vi. Letter of competence as per		
	format prescribed in Annexure-V .		
	vii. Power of Attorney as per		
	format prescribed in		
	Annexure-VI.		
	viii. Letter of Conformity as		
	per format prescribed in		
	Annexure-VII.		
	ix. DD/Instrument towards EMD OR EMD in the form of Bank		
	Guarantee as per format		
	prescibed in Annexue-VIII		
	x. Non-disclosure Agreement as		
	per format prescribed in		
	Annexure-IX.		
	xi. Bank Mandate Form as per		
	format prescribed in Annexure -X .		
	xii. Statement of Deviation as		
	per format prescribed in		
	Annexure-XI		
	xiii. Resource credential as		
	per format prescribed in		
	Annexure-XII xiv. Undertaking for central		
	minimum wages act & labour		
	laws per format prescribed in		
	Annexure –XIII		
	xv. Undertaking letter for gst		
	law per format prescribed in		
	Annexure -XIV		

Envelope No.	Bid Contents	No. of Copies	Label of Envelope
II	Commercial Bid i. Response to Commercial Bid as per format prescribed in Annexure-XV.	Hardcopy – 1	Commercial Bid for the appointment of the consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy of the Bank.

- 1. Above mentioned two separately sealed sub-envelopes should be put together in another master sealed envelope super-scribing "Bid for the appointment of the Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy."
- 2. All the individual envelopes must be super-scribed with the following information as well:
 - Name of the bidder, Contact Name, Number and e-mail id.
- 3. Bids should be enclosed with all relevant documentary proofs / certificates duly sealed and signed.
- 4. Envelope-I should also contain softcopy of respective response documents in a CD / Pen drive.
- 5. Authorized Signatory Authorized signatory on whose name Power of Attorney is issued must sign all the pages of the response.
- 6. Submission of irrelevant documents must be avoided. If the bids do not contain all the information required or is incomplete, the proposal is liable to be rejected.
- 7. The offers containing any inter-lineation, erasure or overwriting shall be valid only if they are duly signed by the authorized signatory and supported by a rubber stamp impression of the Bidders' firm. There should be no hand-written material, corrections or alterations in the offer.
- 8. The Bid shall be typed; all pages numbered and shall be signed by the Bidder authorized signatory and supported by rubber stamp impression. Faxed copies of any submission are not acceptable and will be rejected by the Bank.
- 9. The Bid document shall be spirally bound or filed.
- 10. The bidder to note that, under no circumstances the Commercial Bid should be kept in Minimum Eligibility Criteria Bid Covers. The placement of Commercial Bid in Minimum Eligibility Criteria covers will make bid liable for rejection.
- 11. Each of the envelope(s) shall be addressed to the Bank at the address given below:

General Manager (RiMV),

Small Industries Development Bank of India, Swavalamban Bhavan, C-11, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051 Phone: 022-67531142 / 8146563423

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020	
RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy	Page :20 of 75

3.11 Authorised Signatory

The bidder should submit power of attorney as per the format given in **Annexure -VI OR** a certified copy of the resolution of their board, authenticated by the company secretary, authorizing an official or officials of the bidder to sign the bid documents, to discuss, sign agreements/contracts/purchase order with the bank, raise invoice and accept payments and also to correspond. The proposal/ bid documents shall be duly signed by the authorised signatory (in whose favour power of Attorney is issued). The bid signed by authroised signatory would be binding on the bidder.

3.12 Important

Bidders must take the following points into consideration during preparation and submission of bids.

- 1. Relevant documents must be submitted as proof wherever necessary. All the pages must be sealed and signed by the authorized signatory of the respondent.
- 2. Responses should be concise and to the point. Submission of irrelevant documents must be avoided.

4. Scope of Work and Deliverables

4.1 Scope of Work

- 1. To review and rationalize the existing IT Security Policy (ITSP) and Cyber Security Policy (CSP) to address the new guidelines issued by regulatory bodies and to adopt industry best practices.
- 2. To segregate the operational and procedural guidelines from the existing policy
- 3. To review existing Information Security/ Cyber Security framework in the Bank vis-a-vis latest RBI Circular/ Guidelines on Cyber Security framework and to recommend applicable and appropriate policies to be added in the existing policy for meeting the identified gaps.
- 4. To review and recommend changes to the existing Cyber Crisis Management plan, its procedures, etc. to suit the Bank's needs.
- 5. To recommend relevant guidelines to be added in the existing policy pertaining to Work From Home (WFH) environment by taking into account the threats, vulnerabilities, and other impacts.
- 6. To identify the areas of training required for lower/ middle/ upper level management personnel for developing IT Security and Cyber Security awareness
- 7. To review and confirm the changes required to be made in IS Audit Scope.
- 8. To define suitable Encryption policy based on assessment of IT setup of the Bank, data/information, data privacy and confidentiality requirements, deployed/ envisaged technologies, their architecture etc. and accordingly draft suitable encryption policy. The policy should cover the following aspects to ensure that adequate controls are in place:
- (a) Bank's information, systems, networks, and other information assets and Data Classification
- (b) Encryption of data in the following states:
 - Data at Rest
 - Data in Motion
 - Data in Processing.
- (c) Encryption key Management
- (d) Acceptable Encryption Algorithms
- (e) Roles and Responsibilities of stakeholders, Enforcement of policy etc.

4.2 Deliverables:

Following deliverables should be submitted to SIDBI within 30days from the date of purchase order issued by SIDBI for review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy.

Sr No	Particulars	Deliverables
1	List of changes to be made in the IT Security and Cyber Security Policy in lines with the gudilines issued by various regulatory bodies.	List of changes to be submitted along with justifications / by quoting the reference of circulars issued by regulatory bodies wherever relevant/applicable.
2	List of operation guidelines and procedural guidelines separated from ITSP & CSP to be submitted separately	A separate list of opertional gudilines and procedural guidelines should be submitted. Further list of changes to be made should be provided with justifications.
3	List of changes required in IS Audit Scope	The recommendations should be relevant to SIDBI IT Operations.
4	Recommendations on Cyber Security Audit as applicable to SIDBI.	The recommendations should be relevant to SIDBI IT Operations.
5	Standard Operating procedures for Cyber Attack (as applicable to SIDBI)	The recommendations should be relevant to SIDBI IT Operations.
6	Recommendations of Cyber Incident Management Plan	The recommendations should be relevant to SIDBI IT Operations.
7	Encryption Policy	Policy should cover all the acpects as mentioned in the Scope of Work at Sno.4.1.8 above

4.3 Resource Deployment

- 1. Bidder will be required to submit the Bio-data / CV of the member / members of the consultant team along with the minimum eligibility response to this RfP document. Bio-data / CV should reflect the details of the projects handled by the candidate.
- 2. The bidder should provide the resources as stated in their bid response. No change in resource is allowed.
- 3. There will be a project kick off meet with the selected consultant. The consultant team which will be working on the project should be present for the kick off meeting. Deployment / replacement of any resource in the team will be subjected to approval of SIDBI depending on his/her suitability in the project.

	RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020	
F	RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy	Page :23 of 75

4. Consultant shall fill all the required details in the table Annexure-XII.

4.4 Resource Replacement

- Selected bidder has to retain the entire project team during the project implementation period. In case any team member has to be replaced on account of resignation, bidder has to inform SIDBI within one week.
- 2. Bidder shall promptly initiate a search for a replacement to ensure that the role of the key personnel is not vacant at any point in time during the contract period.
- 3. Before making any replacement, the Consultant shall provide SIDBI with:
 - a) a resume, Curriculum Vitae (CV) and other related information about the proposed candidate; and
 - b) An opportunity to meet / interview the candidate.
- 4. The bidder has to provide replacement resource of equal or better qualification and experience.
- 5. If SIDBI objects to the appointment, Consultant shall not assign the individual to that position and shall seek an alternative candidate in accordance with what has been described in this RfP or contract. The consultant has to ensure at least 2 weeks of overlapping period in such replacements. SIDBI will not be responsible for any knowledge transition to the replacement of resource and any impact / escalation of cost thereby.

4.5 Software / Hardware Requirements

All the software, hardware equipment's like Laptops, tools, Internet access etc to carry out the assignment has to be brought by the selected Bidder at no extra cost.

4.6 Professionalism

The selected Bidder should provide professional, objective and impartial advice at all times and hold the Bank's interest paramount and should observe the highest standard of ethics, values, code of conduct, honesty and integrity while executing the assignment.

4.7 Adherence to Standards

- 1. The selected Bidder should adhere to RBI Working group report requirements and also Banks own Security policies as reference while providing the consultancy services.
- 2. The selected Bidder should adhere to all the applicable laws of land and rules, regulations and guidelines prescribed by various regulatory, statutory and Government authorities.

- 3. The Bank reserves the right to conduct an audit/ongoing audit of the consulting services provided by the selected Bidder.
- 4. The Bank reserves the right to ascertain information from the other Banks and institutions to which the Bidders have rendered their services for execution of similar projects.

4.8 SIDBI Responsibility

SIDBI will provide the consultant the following while carrying out the assignment:

- 1. All currently available policy and procedure documents with the Bank.
- 2. In view of the pandemic situation, seating space with intercom facility to carry out the consultancy will be arranged based on availability of workstations. Meetings will be arranged through Microsoft Teams Application.
- 3. Opportunity to interact with various groups / verticals and vendors.
- 4. Details of the team who would be interacting with the consultant.

5. Eligibility Criteria and Evaluation Methodology

5.1 Evaluation Criteria

1. Minimum Eligibility Bid

Proposals not complying with the prescribed 'Minimum Eligibility criteria' and not submitted as per Annexure-II are liable to be rejected and will not be considered for further evaluation.

2. Commercial Bid

The commercial bids should be submitted as per **Annexure-XV**. Commercial bids not found to be submitted in the prescribed format and in accordance with the terms of this RfP, shall be declared as 'Non-responsive' and hence shall be rejected

5.2 Evaluation Methodology

1. Evaluation process

The Bank has adopted a Two (2) bid evaluation process in which the Bidder has to submit following bids in separate envelopes at the time of submission of bids as stipulated in this document.

- i. Minimum Eligibility Criteria
- ii. Commercial Bids

The Bank shall evaluate first the 'Minimum Eligibility Criteria' bids and based on its evaluation, 'Commercial Bids' shall be undertaken for evaluation at the second stage. The final selection will be done based on the commercial evaluation of pre-qualified short-listed bidders as detailed below in the Evaluation of Commercial Bids.

The evaluation by the Bank will be undertaken by a Committee of Officials or / and representatives formed by the Bank and its decision will be final.

During evaluation of Bids, the Bank, at its discretion, may ask the Bidders for clarifications of their Bids. The request for clarification and the response shall be in writing (Letter/e-Mail), and it should be submitted within the time stipulated by the Bank. No change in the price of substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered or permitted.

2. **Preliminary Examinations**

The Bank will examine the Bids to determine whether they are complete, the documents have been properly signed, supporting papers/documents attached and the bids are generally in order.

The Bank may, at its sole discretion, waive any minor infirmity, nonconformity or irregularity in a Bid which does not constitute a material deviation, provided such a waiver does not prejudice or affect the relative ranking of any Bidder.

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

Page: 26 of 75

Prior to the detailed evaluation, the Bank will determine the substantial responsiveness of each Bid to the Bidding document. For purposes of these Clauses, a substantially responsive Bid is one, which conforms to all the terms and conditions of the Bidding Document without material deviations. Deviations from or objections or reservations to critical provisions, such as those concerning qualification criteria, payment terms, bid validity, Force Majeure etc will be deemed to be a material deviation. The Bank's determination of a Bid's responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the Bid itself, without recourse to extrinsic evidence.

If a Bid is not substantially responsive, it will be rejected by the Bank and may not subsequently be made responsive by the Bidder by correction of the nonconformity.

The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms and specification in the Bidding Document. Failure to furnish all information required by the Bidding Document or to submit a Bid not substantially responsive to the Bidding Document in every respect will be at the Bidder's risk and may result in the rejection of its Bid.

3. Clarification of bids

To assist in the scrutiny, evaluation and comparison of offers/bids, the bank may, at its sole discretion, ask some or all bidders for clarification of their offer/bid. The request for such clarifications and the response will necessarily be in writing and no change in the price or substance of the bid shall be sought, offered or permitted. Any decision of the bank in this regard shall be final, conclusive and binding on the bidder.

4. Evaluation of Minimum Eligibility Criteria

Bids submitted by all the bidders would be evaluated for eligibility as mentioned in the 'Minimum Eligibility Criteria' section. Bids not complying with the minimum eligibility criteria are liable to be disqualified/ rejected and will not be considered for further evaluation.

Bidders must submit the proof of all the credentials as required for evaluation of eligibility criteria. Claims of the bidders without verifiable facts won't be considered as credentials towards satisfying eligibility criteria.

Successful bids out of this stage would be considered for commercial evaluation.

5. Evaluation of Commercial Bids

In this phase, the Commercial Bids of the Bidders, who are found qualified in previous phase, will be considered for commercial evaluation.

The date for opening of commercial bids will be separately advised.

The L1 bidder would be shortlisted based on the least cost quoted.

No Commitment to Accept Lowest or Any Offer

The Bank reserves its right to reject any or all the offers without assigning any reason thereof whatsoever.

The Bank will not be obliged to meet and have discussions with any bidder and/ or to entertain any representations in this regard.

However, the Bank does not bind itself to accept the lowest or any Bid and reserves the right to reject any or all bids at any point of time prior to the order without assigning any reasons whatsoever. The bank reserves the right to re-tender.

The bidder including those, whose tender is not accepted shall not be entitled to claim any costs, charges, damages and expenses of and incidental to or incurred by him through or in connection with his submission of tenders, even though the Bank may elect to modify / withdraw the tender.

6. Terms and Conditions

6.1 General

The Bidders are expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms and specifications in the bidding documents. Failure to furnish all information required by the bidding documents may result in the rejection of its bid and will be at the bidder's own risk.

Information provided in this RfP is organized in several sections to bring clarity and help the reader to understand quickly. However, Bidder must take into consideration each and every line of this RfP document as a whole while responding. Bidder must get the doubts, if any, clarified by SIDBI before submitting the responses. The bids submitted should be complete in all respect meeting all deliverables under the project. It will be sole responsibility of the selected bidder to deliver each and everything as per the scope of the project during the contracted period. SIDBI shall not be responsible in case of bidder's failure to notice any information, any requirement is underestimated, not understood or any requirement is not interpreted in right direction during preparation/submitting the response.

Unless expressly overridden by the specific agreement to be entered into between the Bank and the successful Bidder, the RFP shall be the governing document for arrangement between the Bank and the Bidders.

6.2 Definitions

In this Contract, the following terms shall be interpreted as indicated:

- 1. "The Bank" means Small Industries Development Bank Of India (SIDBI);
- "The Contract" means the agreement entered into between the Bank, represented by its Head Office / Regional Offices and the Bidder, as recorded in the Contract Form signed by the parties, including all attachments and appendices thereto and all documents incorporated by reference therein;
- 3. "The Contract Price" means the price payable to the Bidder under the Contract for the full and proper performance of its contractual obligations;
- 4. "TCC" means the Terms and Conditions of Contract contained in this section;
- 5. "The Bidder" or "the Vendor" means the individual or firm supplying or intending to supply the Services under this Contract; and
- 6. "The Project Site" means Small Industries Development Bank of India, Mumbai Office.

- 7. Financial Institutions (FIs) means Export Import Bank of India (Exim Bank), National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD), Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) and National Housing Bank (NHB)
- 8. "Authorised Signatory" of the bidder is the person in favour of whom bidder is submitting power of attorney along with response to this bid.

6.3 Amendment to the RfP

At any time prior to the date of submission of Bids, the Bank, for any reason, may modify the RfP, by amendment.

The amendment will be posted on the Bank's website (www.sidbi.in) and CPP portal (http://eprocure.gov.in).

All Bidders must ensure that such clarifications have been considered by them before submitting the bid. Bank will not have any responsibility in case some omission is done by any bidder.

In order to allow prospective Bidders reasonable time in which to take the amendment into account in preparing their Bids, the Bank, at its discretion, may extend the deadline for the submission of Bids.

6.4 Language of Bid

The bid prepared by the Bidders as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Bank and supporting documents and printed literature shall be written in English.

6.5 Commercial Bid

The Bidder is required to quote in Indian Rupees ('INR'/ '`'). Bids in currencies other than INR may not be considered.

The prices quoted would include all costs such as GST, custom duties, transportation, out of pocket expenses, lodging and boarding expenses, service tax, Education cess, Swachh Bharat Cess, Krishi Kalyan Cess etc., that need to be incurred (at current rate). No additional cost whatsoever would be paid.

While any increase in the rates of applicable taxes or impact of new taxes subsequent to the submission of commercial bid shall be borne by SIDBI, any subsequent decrease in the rates of applicable taxes or impact of new taxes shall be passed on to SIDBI in its favour. This will remain applicable throughout the contract period.

The Commercial Bid should be submitted in the format prescribed in the RFP. Consideration of commercial bids, not submitted as per requisite format, will be at the discretion of the bank.

6.6 Earnest Money Deposit (EMD)

All the responses must be accompanied by a refundable interest free security deposit of amount EMD should be in the form of Demand Draft / Pay order / Bankers Cheque in favour of "Small Industries Development Bank of India" payable at Mumbai **OR** in the form of Bank guarantee (BG) from a Scheduled Commercial Bank / Nationalised Bank valid for a period of 6 months with three months claim period from the date of tender. The BG should be strictly in the format as prescribed in **Annexure -VIII**; **OR** Direct Deposit of EMD to SIDBI, Mumbai account and submission of proof along with the bid. The details of SIDBI, Mumbai account are given in Section 6.7.

Format of EMD / Bid Security in the form of Bank Guarantee is prescribed in **Annexure-VIII**. Any bid received without EMD in proper form and manner shall be considered unresponsive and rejected.

The Demand Draft should be of a Scheduled Commercial Bank only and will be accepted subject to the discretion of the Bank.

No interest will be paid on EMD.

Request for exemption from EMD will not be entertained.

The EMD amount / BG of all unsuccessful bidders would be refunded immediately upon occurrence of any the following events, whichever is earlier:

a) Receipt of the signed contract and performance security from the successful bidder.

OR

b) The end of the bid validity period, including extended period (if any),

Successful Bidder will be refunded the EMD amount only after submission of performance guarantee by the bidder.

The bid security may be forfeited if:

- a) Bidder withdraws its bids during the period of bid validity.
- b) Bidder makes any statement or encloses any form which turns out to be false/ incorrect at any time prior to signing of the contract.
- c) In case of successful Bidder, if the Bidder fails to sign the contract or fails to furnish performance guarantee.
- d) Besides forfeiting the EMD, the Bank may ban the bidder from subsequent bidding for a period of 3 years.

6.7 Details of SIDBI Account

The payment towards EMD & Tender Fee (as indicated in the tender document) can be submitted through Online Mode in the following account of SIDBI (Beneficiary) through RTGS / NEFT:

Beneficiaries name: Small Industries Development Bank of India

Name of Bank: State Bank of India

Account Number: 37823159064

Branch Name (Branch Code): Bandra Kurla Complex (04380), Mumbai

IFSC Code: SBIN0004380

6.8 Period of Validity of Bids

Prices and other terms offered by Bidders must be firm for an acceptance period as mentioned in 'Critical information' sheet.

In exceptional circumstances the Bank may solicit the Bidders consent to an extension of the period of validity. The request and response thereto shall be made in writing.

Bank, however, reserves the right to call for fresh quotes at any time during the period, if considered necessary.

6.9 Deadline for submission of Bids

The bids must be received by the Bank at the specified address not later than date mentioned in 'Critical Information', given in the beginning of this document.

In the event of the specified date for the submission of bids, being declared a holiday for the Bank, the bids will be received up to the appointed time on the next working day.

The Bank may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for submission of Bids by amending the Bid Documents, in which case, all rights and obligations of the Bank and Bidders previously subject to the deadline will thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.

6.10 Late Bids

Any bid received by the Bank after the deadline for submission of bids prescribed by the Bank will be rejected and returned unopened to the bidder.

6.11 Modification And/ Or Withdrawal of Bids

The Bidder may modify or withdraw its bid after the bid's submission, provided written notice of the modification including substitution or withdrawal of the bids is received by the Bank, prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of bids.

The Bid modification or withdrawal notice must be on bidder's letterhead, signed and sealed. A withdrawal notice may also be sent by Fax/email and followed by a signed confirmation copy received by the Bank not later than the deadline for submission of bids.

No bid may be modified or withdrawn after the deadline for submission of bids.

Bank has the right to reject any or all bids received without assigning any reason whatsoever. Bank shall not be responsible for non-receipt / non-delivery of the bid documents due to any reason whatsoever.

6.12 Opening of Bids by the Bank

The process of opening the bids is explained in Sno.5.1 and 5.2 above

If any of the bidders or all bidders who have submitted the tender and are not present during the specified date and time of opening, bank at its discretion will proceed further with opening of the technical bids in their absence.

The Bidder name, presence or absence of requisite EMD and such other details as the Bank, at its discretion may consider appropriate will be announced at the time of bid opening.

Bids that are not opened at Bid opening shall not be considered for further evaluation, irrespective of the circumstances. Withdrawn bids will be returned unopened to the Bidders.

6.13 Bid Evaluation

All the responsive bids will be evaluated as per the procedure detailed in Sno.5.2 above.

All the documentary proofs are to be submitted along with the bid in this regard.

Bidders must not present any reference as credential for which it is not in a position to present the verifiable facts/documents. SIDBI would not consider any statement as a credential if same cannot be verified as per its requirement for evaluation.

During evaluation, Bank at its discretion can ask the bidders for clarifications.

Bank may waive off any minor infirmity or nonconformity or irregularity in a bid, which does not constitute a material deviation, provided such a waiving, does not prejudice or affect the relative ranking of any bidder.

6.14 Arithmetic errors correction

Arithmetic errors, if any, in the price break-up format will be rectified on the following basis:

If there is discrepancy in the price quoted in figures and words, the price, in figures or in words, as the case may be, which corresponds to the total bid price for the item shall be taken as correct.

It the vendor has not worked out the total bid price or the total bid price does not correspond to the unit price quoted either in words or figures, the unit price quoted in words shall be taken as correct.

6.15 No Commitment to Accept Lowest or Any Offer

The Bank reserves its right to reject any or all the offers without assigning any reason thereof whatsoever.

The Bank will not be obliged to meet and have discussions with any bidder and/ or to entertain any representations in this regard.

The bids received and accepted will be evaluated by the Bank to ascertain the best and lowest bid in the interest of the Bank. However, the Bank does not bind itself to accept the lowest or any Bid and reserves the right to reject any or all bids at any point of time prior to the order without assigning any reasons whatsoever. The bank reserves the right to retender.

6.16 Conditional Bids

Conditional bids shall not be accepted on any ground and shall be rejected straightway. If any clarification is required, the same should be obtained from the bank before submission of bids.

6.17 Contacting the Bank

After opening of Bid to the time a communication in writing about its qualification or otherwise received from the Bank, bidder shall NOT contact the Bank on any matter relating to its Bid.

Any effort by the Bidder to influence the Bank in its decisions on Bid evaluation, Bid comparison may result in the rejection of the Bidder's Bid.

6.18 Award of Contract

The successful Bidder will be selected as per the process mentioned in Bid evaluation methodology. The Bank will award the contract to the successful Bidder, out of the Bidders who have responded to Bank's tender as referred above, who has been determined to qualify to perform the contract satisfactorily, and whose Bid has been determined to be substantially responsive.

Selected bidder would be issued 'Letter of intent (LoI)/ purchase order (PO) on final selection and completion of internal approval formalities of the bank. Immediately after the receipt, the selected Bidder must go through the same and give its acceptance by signing on all the pages of the duplicate copy of the LOI/ PO within the stipulated period.

6.19 Non-Disclosure Agreement

The agreement with Non-disclosure agreement clauses should be executed within a week from the date of purchase order.

The date of agreement shall be treated as date of engagement and the time-line for completion of the assignment shall be worked out with reference to this date.

6.20 Ownership of Delivered Product / Services

The selected Bidder, who will be awarded the contract, will hold ownership of its delivery of the services / products under the contract and be responsible for the services / products delivered.

All the deliverables as per the scope of this RfP will become the property of the Bank.

6.21 Corrupt and fraudulent practice

As per Central Vigilance Commission (CVC) directives, it is required that Bidders / Suppliers / Contractors observe the highest standard of ethics during the execution of this RfP and subsequent contract(s). In this context, the bidders are requested to note the following:

"Corrupt Practice" means the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting of anything of value to influence the action of an official in the procurement process or in contract execution.

"Fraudulent Practice" means a misrepresentation of facts in order to influence a procurement process or the execution of contract to the detriment of the Bank and includes collusive practice among bidders (prior to or after bid submission) designed to establish bid prices at artificial non-competitive levels and to deprive the Bank of the benefits of free and open competition.

The Bank reserves the right to declare a bidder ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to be awarded a contract if at any time it determines that the bidder has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for or in executing the contract.

6.22 Use of Contract Documents and Information

The bidder shall not, without the Bank's prior written consent, disclose the Contract, or any provision thereof, or any specification, plan, drawing, pattern, sample or information furnished by or on behalf of the Bank in connection with, to any person other than a person employed by the Bidder in the performance of the Contract. Disclosure to any such employed person shall be made in confidence and shall extend only as far as may be necessary for purposes of such performance.

The Bidder will treat as confidential all data and information about the Bank, obtained in the execution of his responsibilities, in strict confidence and will not reveal such information to any other party without the prior written approval of the Bank.

6.23 Subcontracts

The successful bidder shall not assign to others, in whole or in part, their obligation to perform under the contract, except with the Bank's prior written consent.

6.24 Expenses

It may be noted that SIDBI will not pay any additional amount separately towards travelling expenses / boarding expenses / lodging expenses / conveyance expenses / out of pocket expenses or any other fees /charges.

However, the Bidder may factor such expenses within the total project cost towards travelling, boarding and lodging outside Mumbai, if any, to meet the requirement described in the scope of work.

6.25 Terms of Payment

The payment schedule is linked to project milestones as under:

100% payment will be made on submission of deliverables mentioned at Sno.4.2, after the presentation of deliverables to internal committees of the Bank, subject to the following:

a. All the payments will be made by SIDBI office, electronically through RTGS/ NEFT. All the bidders should submit duly filled-in & signed [by authorized signatory and bidder's banker] Bank Mandate Form as per format prescribed in **Annexure-X**. In case the bidders have already submitted the form with bank in connection with any other tender/ transactions, same need not to be submitted again.

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

Page :36 of 75

- b. Prior to release of payment in case of any change in Bank A/c and other details furnished in Bank Mandate Form, the vendor would be required to intimate the Bank and Bank Mandate Form would be required to be re-furnished.
- c. All Payments will be made to the Bidder in Indian Rupee only.
- d. Subject to SIDBI being satisfied that Bidder has carried out its duties, obligations and responsibilities under this Agreement, the professional fees shall be paid within 30 (thirty) calendar days of receipt of an invoice.

6.26 Applicable laws

The Contract shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws prevalent in India.

Compliance with all applicable laws: The Bidder shall undertake to observe, adhere to, abide by, comply with and notify the Bank about all laws in force or as are or as made applicable in future, pertaining to or applicable to them, their business, their employees or their obligations towards them and all purposes of this Tender and shall indemnify, keep indemnified, hold harmless, defend and protect the Bank and its employees/ officers/ resource/ personnel/ representatives/ agents from any failure or omission on its part to do so and against all claims or demands of liability and all consequences that may occur or arise for any default or failure on its part to conform or comply with the above and all other statutory obligations arising there from.

Compliance in obtaining approvals/ permissions/ licenses: The Bidder shall promptly and timely obtain all such consents, permissions, approvals, licenses, etc., as may be necessary or required for any of the purposes of this project or for the conduct of their own business under any applicable Law, Government Regulation/Guidelines and shall keep the same valid and in force during the term of the project, and in the event of any failure or omission to do so, shall indemnify, keep indemnified, hold harmless, defend, protect and fully compensate the Bank and its employees/ officers/ resource/ personnel/ representatives/agents from and against all claims or demands of liability and all consequences that may occur or arise for any default or failure on its part to conform or comply with the above and all other statutory obligations arising therefrom and the Bank will give notice of any such claim or demand of liability within reasonable time to the bidder.

6.27 Taxes and Duties

The bidder shall be entirely responsible for all applicable taxes, duties, levies, charges, license fees, road permits, etc. in connection with delivery of products/services at site including incidental services and commissioning.

The bidder must also ensure that all applicable laws framed by the Central Government, State Government and Local Bodies, including payment of applicable minimum wages and all laws pertaining to contract employees/labour laws are complied with while providing caretaker services. The selected vendor may have to execute an indemnity bond in favour of the Bank in this regard.

Providing clarifications/particulars/documents etc. to the appropriate tax authorities for assessment of tax, compliance with labour and other laws, etc will be the responsibility of the vendor at his cost.

Tax deduction at Source - Wherever the laws and regulations require deduction of such taxes at the source of payment, the Bank shall effect such deductions from the payment due to the Vendor. The remittance of amounts so deducted and issuance of certificate for such deductions shall be made by the Bank as per the laws and regulations in force. Nothing in the Contract shall relieve the Vendor from his responsibility to pay any tax that may be levied in India on income and profits made by the Vendor in respect of this contract.

6.28 Forfeiture of performance security

The Bank shall be at liberty to set off/adjust the proceeds of the performance guarantee towards the loss, if any, sustained due to the bidder's failure to complete its obligations under the contract. This is without prejudice to the Bank's right to proceed against the Bidder in the event of the security being not enough to fully cover the loss/damage.

In the event of non-performance of obligation or failure to meet terms of this RfP/Contract, the Bank shall be entitled to invoke the performance guarantee without notice or right of demur to the Bidder.

6.29 Commencement of Services

Commencement of Services: The Bidder shall commence the consultancy services not later than 7 days from the date of issue of LOI / PO by the Bank, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties.

6.30 Termination of Contract

The Bank reserves the right to cancel the contract in the event of happening one or more of the following Conditions:

- a. Failure of the successful bidder to accept the contract
- b. Delay in services
- c. Serious problems in quality of services

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy Policy

In addition to the cancellation of purchase contract, Bank reserves the right to appropriate the damages through encashment of Bid Security / Bank Guarantee given by the Bidder.

Bank shall have the option to terminate any subsequent agreement / contract, in whole or in part by giving the Successful Bidder at least 30 days' prior notice in writing. However, the successful Bidder shall not have any right to terminate the Agreement entered into subsequent to this RfP for convenience.

6.31 Payment in case of Termination of assignment

SIDBI would keep the delivered content and payment for services which could be used by SIDBI shall be released on pro-rata basis after deducting applicable penalty and TDS/other taxes. Please refer to payment terms defined in Sno.6.25 above which are defined based on the stages of deliverables mentioned in Sno.4.2 above.

6.32 Penalty for Default in Services

If the selected bidder fails to complete the project within stipulated time, SIDBI will impose a penalty of 0.5% of the order value for each weeks delay or part thereof attributable to the bidder, subject to maximum of 10% of the order value. Fraction of week is to be construed as one full week for arriving at the delay in terms of weeks. Penalty would not be applicable for delay due to reasons attributable to the Bank and Force Majeure. However, it is responsibility of the selected bidder to prove that the delay is attributed to the Bank or Force Majeure.

Bank reserves the right to adjust the penalty and Liquidity damages if any against any amount payable to the bidder or PBG.

6.33 No Employer-Employee Relationship

The selected bidder or any of its holding / subsidiary / joint-venture / affiliate / group / client companies or any of their employees / officers / staff / personnel / representatives / agents shall not, under any circumstances, be deemed to have any employer – employee relationship with the Bank or any of its employees / officers / staff / representatives / personnel / agents.

The selected bidder during the term of the contract and for a period of two years thereafter shall not without the express written consent of the Bank, directly or indirectly a. Recruit, hire, appoint or engage or attempt to recruit, hire, appoint or engage or discuss employment with or otherwise utilise the services of any person who has been an employee or associate or engaged in any capacity, by the Bank in rendering the services in relation to the contract; or b. Induce any person who shall have been an employee or associate of the Bank at any time to terminate his / her relationship with the Bank.

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

Page :39 of 75

6.34 Force Majeure

If the performance as specified in this order is prevented, restricted, delayed or interfered by reason of Fire, explosion, cyclone, floods, War, revolution, acts of public enemies, blockage or embargo, Any law, order, proclamation, ordinance, demand or requirements of any Government or authority or representative of any such Government including restrict trade practices or regulations, Strikes, shutdowns or labour disputes which are not instigated for the purpose of avoiding obligations herein, or Any other circumstances beyond the control of the party affected, then notwithstanding anything here before contained, the party affected shall be excused from its performance to the extent such performance relates to prevention, restriction, delay or interference and provided the party so affected uses its best efforts to remove such cause of non-performance and when removed the party shall continue performance with utmost dispatch.

If a Force Majeure situation arises, the Bidder shall promptly notify the Bank in writing of such condition, the cause thereof and the change that is necessitated due to the conditions. Until and unless otherwise directed by the Bank in writing, the Bidder shall continue to perform its obligations under the Contract as far as it is reasonably practical, and shall seek all reasonable alternative means for performance not prevented by the Force Majeure event.

6.35 Resolution of Disputes

- 1.It will be the Bank's endeavour to resolve amicably any disputes or differences that may arise between the Bank and the Bidder from misconstruing the meaning and operation of the Tender and the breach that may result.
- 2.In case of Dispute or difference arising between the Bank and a Bidder relating to any matter arising out of or connected with this agreement, such disputes or difference shall be settled in accordance with the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996. The Arbitrators shall be chosen by mutual discussion between the Bank and the Bidder OR in case of disagreement each party may appoint an arbitrator and such arbitrators may appoint an Umpire before entering on the reference. The decision of the Umpire shall be final.
- 3. The Bidder shall continue work under the Contract during the arbitration proceedings unless otherwise directed in writing by the Bank or unless the matter is such that the work cannot possibly be continued until the decision of the Arbitrator or the umpire, as the case may be, is obtained.
- 4. Arbitration proceedings shall be held at Mumbai, India, and the language of the arbitration proceedings and that of all documents and communications between the parties shall be English.

- 5. Notwithstanding anything contained above, in case of dispute, claim & legal action arising out of the contract, the parties shall be subject to the jurisdiction of courts at Mumbai, India only.
- 6. Any notice given by one party to the other pursuant to this Contract shall be sent to the other party in writing or by fax and confirmed in writing to the other party's specified address. The same has to be acknowledged by the receiver in writing.
- 7.A notice shall be effective when delivered or on the notice's effective date, whichever is later.
- 8. No conflict between Bidder and SIDBI will cause cessation of services. Only by mutual consent the services will be withdrawn.

6.36 IPR Infringement

As part of this project bidder/service provider will use software/tool to deliver services. If the deliverables and use of any such software/tool used for such delivery, infringe the intellectual property rights of any third person, bidder/service provider shall be primarily liable to indemnify SIDBI to the extent of direct damages against all claims, demands, costs, charges, expenses, award, compensations etc. arising out of the proceedings initiated by third party for such infringement, subject to the condition that the claim relates to Software provided/used by Bidder/Service provider under this project.

6.37 Indemnity

- 1. The Bidder/ successful bidder shall indemnify the Bank, and shall always keep indemnified and hold the Bank, its employees, personnel, officers, directors, harmless from and against any and all losses, liabilities, claims, actions, costs and expenses (including attorneys' fees) relating to, resulting directly or indirectly from or in any way arising out of any claim, suit or proceeding brought against the Bank as a result of:
 - i. Bank's authorized / bona fide use of the Deliverables and /or the Services provided by Bidder under this RfP document; and/or
 - ii. An act or omission of the Bidder, employees, agents, subcontractors in the performance of the obligations of the Bidder under this RfP document; and/or
 - iii. Claims made by employees or subcontractors or subcontractors' employees, who are deployed by the Bidder, against the Bank; and/or
 - iv. Breach of any of the term of this RfP document and/or of the agreement to be entered subsequent this RfP or breach of any representation or false representation or inaccurate statement or assurance or covenant or warranty by the successful Bidder under this RfP document and/or of the agreement to be entered subsequent this RfP; and/or
 - v. Negligence or gross misconduct attributable to the Bidder or its employees or sub-contractors.

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

Page :41 of 75

- vi. Any or all Deliverables or Services infringing any patent, trademarks, copyrights or such other Intellectual Property Rights; and/or
- vii. Breach of confidentiality obligations of the Bidder contained in this RfP document; and/or
- viii. The use of unlicensed and illegal Software and/or allied components by the successful Bidder
- 2. The Bidder will have to at its own cost and expenses defend or settle any claim against the Bank that the Deliverables and Services delivered or provided under this RfP document infringe a patent, utility model, industrial design, copyright, trade secret, mask work or trade mark in the country where the Deliverables and Services are used, sold or received, provided the Bank:
 - i. Notifies the Bidder in writing; and
 - ii. Cooperates with the Bidder in the defence and settlement of the claims.
- 3. The Bidder shall not be liable for defects or non-conformance resulting from:
 - i. Software, hardware, interfacing not approved by Bidder; or
 - ii. Unauthorized modification of Software or any individual product supplied under this RfP document, or Bank's failure to comply with any mutually agreed environmental specifications.
 - iii. Use of a Deliverable in an application or environment for which it was not designed or not contemplated under this Agreement,
 - iv. Modification of a Deliverable by anyone other than Bidder where the unmodified version of the Deliverable would not be infringing.
- 4. Sub-contractor for this clause is third party certification authority.

6.38 Limitation of liabilities

In no event shall either party be liable with respect to its obligations under or arising out of this agreement for consequential, exemplary, punitive, special, or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, loss of data / programs or lost profits, loss of goodwill, work stoppage, computer failure, loss of work product or any and all other commercial damages or losses whether directly or indirectly caused, even if such party has been advised of the possibility of such damages. The aggregate liability of vendor, arising at any time shall not exceed the total contract value.

6.39 Rights to Visit

1. All records of the Bidder with respect to any matters covered by this Tender document/ subsequent order shall be made available to SIDBI or its designees at any time during normal business hours, as often

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

Page :42 of 75

- as SIDBI deems necessary, to audit, examine, and make excerpts or transcripts of all relevant data.
- 2. SIDBI, including its regulatory authorities like RBI etc., reserves the right to verify, through their officials or such other persons as SIDBI may authorise, the progress of the project at the development /customization site of the Bidder or where the services are being rendered by the bidder.
- 3. The Bank and its authorized representatives, including regulator like Reserve Bank of India (RBI) shall have the right to visit any of the Bidder's premises with prior notice to ensure that data provided by the Bank is not misused. The Bidder will have to cooperate with the authorized representative/s of the Bank and will have to provide all information/ documents required by the Bank.
- 4. The right to visit under these clauses shall be restricted to physical files related to this arraignment. Visit shall be conducted during normal business hours and on normal working days after informing the bidder in advance.

6.40 **Audit**

- The vendor shall allow the Bank, its authorised personnel, its auditors (internal and external), authorised personnel from RBI / other regulatory & statutory authorities, and grant unrestricted right to inspect and audit its books and accounts, to provide copies of any audit or review reports and findings made on the service provider, directly related to the services.
- 2. In case any of the services are further outsourced/ assigned/ subcontracted to other vendors, it will be the responsibility of the vendor to ensure that the authorities /officials as mentioned above are allowed access to all the related places, for inspection and verification.
- 3. Audit under this clause shall be restricted to physical files related to this arraignment. Audit shall be conducted during normal business hours and on normal working days after informing the bidder in advance.

6.41 Grievances Redressal Mechanism

Bank has a grievances redressal mechanism for its customers and designated grievances redressal officers. The bank would use the same mechanism to address the grievances, if any, of the customers related to the services being rendered within the ambit of this RfP.

6.42 Miscellaneous

- 1. Bidder is expected to peruse all instructions, forms, terms and specifications in this RfP and its Annexures / Appendixes.
- 2. Bidder would undertake to provide appropriate human as well as other resources (PC/laptop etc) required, to execute the various tasks assigned as part of the project, from time to time.

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

Page :43 of 75

- 3. SIDBI shall not be held liable for additional costs incurred during any discussion on contracts or for any work performed in connection therewith.
- 4. The offers containing erasures or alterations will not be considered. There should be no hand-written material, corrections or alterations in the offer. Technical details must be completely filled up. SIDBI may treat proposals not adhering to these guidelines as unacceptable and thereby the proposal may be liable to be rejected.
- 5. Bidder shall promptly notify SIDBI of any event or conditions, which might delay the completion of project in accordance with the approved schedule and the steps being taken to remedy such a situation.
- 6. Bidder shall indemnify, protect and save SIDBI against all claims, losses, costs, damages, expenses, action suits and other proceedings, resulting directly or indirectly from an act or omission of Bidder, its employees, its agents, in the performance of the services provided by contract, infringement of any patent, trademarks, copyrights etc. or such other statutory infringements in respect of all components provided by Bidder as part of the delivery to fulfil the scope of this project.
- 7. Depending on requirement, SIDBI may decide to move its project site to any of its other locations during the contract period. Bidder will continue to provide the respective services at the new location, if so decided, without any extra cost.
- 8. Any publicity by Bidder in which the name of SIDBI is to be used should be done only with the explicit written permission of SIDBI.
- 9. Bidder is obliged to give sufficient support to SIDBI's staff, work closely with SIDBI's staff, act within its own authority, and abide by directives issued by SIDBI that are consistent with the terms of the order. Bidder is responsible for managing the activities of its personnel, and will hold itself responsible for any misdemeanours.
- 10. SIDBI reserves the exclusive right to make any amendments/ changes to or cancel any of the above actions or any other action related to this RfP.
- 11. The shortlisted consulting firm or its subsidiaries/group companies will not be eligible to participate in any other tender in connection with implementation / procurement exercise out of recommendation of this consulting project.

6.43 Subcontracting

The selected Bidder shall not subcontract or permit anyone other than its personnel to perform any of the work, service or other performance required of the bidder under the contract without the prior written consent of the Bank. If the Bidder undergoes a merger, amalgamation, take-over, consolidation, reconstruction, change of ownership etc., this RFP shall be considered to be

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security

assigned to the new entity and such an act shall not affect the rights and obligations of the Bidder under this RFP.

6.44 Business Continuity

The bidder agrees for the following continuity arrangements to ensure the business continuity of the Bank:

- In the event of this agreement comes to end on account of termination or by the expiry of the term/renewed term of the agreement or otherwise, the bidder shall render all reasonable assistance and help to the Bank and to any new service provider engaged by the Bank, for the smooth switch over and continuity of the services.
- 2. In the event of failure of the bidder to render the service, without prejudice to any other right the Bank shall have as per this agreement, the bank at its sole discretion may make alternate arrangements for getting the services from any other source. And if the bank gives a prior notice to the service provider before availing such service from any other alternative source, the service provider shall be liable to reimburse the expenses, if any incurred by the bank in availing such services from the alternative source.

6.45 Violation of terms

The Bank clarifies that the Bank shall be entitled to an injunction, restraining order, right for recovery, specific performance or such other equitable relief as a court of competent jurisdiction may deem necessary or appropriate to restrain the Bidder from committing any violation or enforce the performance of the covenants, obligations and representations contained in this RFP. These injunctive remedies are cumulative and are in addition to any other rights and remedies the Bank may have at law or in equity, including without limitation a right for recovery of any amounts and related costs and a right for damages.

6.46 Compliance with Statutory and Regulatory Provisions

It shall be the sole responsibility of the vendor to comply with all statutory and regulatory provisions while delivering the services mentioned in this RFP, during the course of the contract.

6.47 Right of Publicity

Any publicity by the Bidder in which the name of SIDBI is to be used should be done only with the explicit written permission of SIDBI.

6.48 Conflict of interest

(a) Bank requires that the selected consultants provide professional, objective, and impartial advice, and at all times hold Bank's interest's

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

paramount, strictly avoid conflicts with other assignment(s) / job(s) or their own corporate interests, and act without any expectation/consideration for award of any future assignment(s) from Bank.

- (b) Without limitation on the generality of the foregoing, the selected Consultant, and any of their affiliates and member firms, shall be considered to have a conflict of interest (and shall not be engaged under any of the circumstances) as set forth below:
 - i. Conflicting assignment/job: The Consultant (including its personnel) or any of its affiliates and member firms shall not be hired for any assignment/job that, by its nature, may be in conflict with another assignment/job of consultancy to be executed for the same and/or for another employer.
 - ii. Conflicting relationships: The Consultant (including its personnel) having a business or family relationship with a member of Bank's staff, who is directly or indirectly involved in any part of (i) the preparation of the terms of reference of the assignment/job, (ii) the selection process for such assignment/job, or (iii) supervision of the contract, may not be awarded a contract, unless the conflict stemming from such a relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to Bank throughout the selection process and the execution of the contract.
- (c) The bidders must disclose in their tender details of any circumstances, including personal, financial and business activities that will, or might, give rise to a conflict of interest if they were awarded the contract pursuant to this RfP.
- (d) If the tenderers identify any potential conflict, they should state how they intend to avoid such conflicts.
- (e) SIDBI reserves the right to reject any tender which, in SIDBI's opinion, gives rise, or could potentially gives rise to, a conflict of interest.

6.49 No Set-off, counterclaim and cross claims

In case the Vendor/ Bidder has any other business relationship with SIDBI, no right of setoff, counterclaim and cross-claim and or otherwise will be available under this Contract/Agreement to the Vendor/ Bidder for any payments receivable under and in accordance with that business.

6.50 **GST Law**

The bidder has to submit an undertaking letter for GST Law, mentioning its compliance with all applicable GST Laws including GST Acts, Rules,

Regulations, Procedures, Circulars & Instructions thereunder applicable in India from time to time and to ensure that such compliance is done.

6.51 Non-Assignment

Neither the subject matter of the contract nor any right arising out of the contract shall be transferred, assigned or delegated to any third party by Vendor without prior written consent of the Bank.

6.52 No third-party rights

No provision of the RfP the agreement that may be entered into is intended to, or shall, confer any rights on a third party beneficiary or other rights or remedies upon any person other than the parties hereto; nor impose any obligations on the part of the parties to the agreement towards any third parties.

6.53 Taken / Brought over of Company / Firm

Subsequent to the order being placed by SIDBI, in the event of bidder being taken / bought over by another company/firm, all the obligations and execution of responsibilities under the agreement with SIDBI should be passed on for compliance by the new company/firm in the negotiation for their transfer.

This RfP contains information proprietary to SIDBI. Each recipient is entrusted to maintain its confidentiality. It should be disclosed only to those employees involved in preparing the requested responses. The information contained in the RfP may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the express permission of SIDBI. The Bidders shall submit a non-disclosure agreement as per Annexure IX on non-judicial stamp paper of appropriate value at the time of submission of bids.

In case the selected vendor is extending similar services to multiple customers, vendor shall take care to build strong safeguards so that there is no co-mingling of information, documents, records and assets related to services within the ambit of this RfP and subsequent purchase order.

6.54 Notification of Awards

The acceptance of a bid, subject to contract, eligibility compliance, commercial considerations & compliance with all the terms and conditions will be communicated in writing by means of offer of contract / service order at the address supplied by the bidder in the tender response.

Any change of address of the Bidder, should therefore be promptly notified to:

General Manager

Small Industries Development Bank of India

Risk Management Vertical,

Swavalamban Bhavan,

Plot No. C-11, 'G' Block,

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

Page :47 of 75

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400051

6.55 Time Frame

The assignment will have to commenced in a duration of 5 working days from the date of purchase order or such time frame as may be mutually agreed to by SIDBI and the Bidder.

The time frame for completion of the assignment will be as follows:

- from the date of purchase order; and
- The entire assignment as defined in the scope of the project will have to be completed in 30days from the date of purchase order.
- The Bank shall have the right to withhold any payment due to the respondent, in case of delays or defaults on the part of the respondent. Such withholding of payment shall not amount to a default on the part of the Bank.

6.56 Representations and Warranties

- a) That the bidder is a Partnership firm/LLP/Company which has the requisite qualifications, skills, experience and expertise in providing Service(s) contemplated by this RFP, possesses the financial wherewithal, the power and the authority to enter into the Engagement and provide the Service(s) sought by Bank.
- b) That the bidder is not involved in any litigation, potential, threatened and existing, that may have an impact of effecting or compromising the performance and delivery of Service(s) under the Engagement.
- c) That the representations made by the bidder in its application are and shall continue to remain true and fulfill all the requirements as are necessary for executing the duties, obligations and responsibilities as laid down in the Engagement and the RFP Documents and unless Bank specifies to the contrary, the Bidder shall be bound by all the terms of the RFP.
- d) That the Bidder has the professional skills, personnel and resources/ authorizations/ approvals/ infrastructure that are necessary for providing all such services as are necessary to perform its obligations under the RFP and this Engagement.
- e) That the Bidder shall use such assets of Bank as Bank may permit for the sole purpose of execution of its obligations under the terms of the RFP or the Engagement. The Bidder shall however, have no claim to any right, title, lien or other interest in any such property, and any possession of property for any duration whatsoever shall not create any right in equity or otherwise, merely by fact of such use or possession during or after the term hereof.
- f) That the Bidder shall procure all the necessary permissions and adequate approvals and licenses for use of various software and any copyrighted process/product free from all claims, titles, interests and liens thereon and shall keep Bank, its directors, officers, employees, representatives,

- consultants and agents indemnified in relation thereto and in respect of any infringement of any of the intellectual property rights.
- g) That all the representations and warranties as have been made by the Bidder with respect to its RFP and Engagement, are true and correct, and shall continue to remain true and correct through the term of the Engagement.
- h) That the execution of the Service(s) herein is and shall be in accordance and in compliance with all applicable laws
 - i) That there are -
 - (1) No legal proceedings pending or threatened against bidder or any of its partners or its team which adversely affect/may affect performance under this Engagement; and
 - (2) No inquiries or investigations have been threatened, commenced or pending against the bidder or any of its Partners or its team members by any statutory or regulatory or investigative agencies.
 - j) That the Bidder has the corporate power to execute, deliver and perform the terms and provisions of the Engagement and has taken all necessary corporate action to authorize the execution, delivery and performance by it of the Engagement.
 - k) That all conditions precedent under the Engagement has been complied.
 - I) That neither the execution nor delivery by the bidder of the Engagement nor the bidder's compliance with or performance of the terms and provisions of the Engagement:
 - (1) will contravene any provision of any applicable law or any order, writ, injunction or decree of any court or governmental authority binding on the bidder.
 - (2) will conflict or be inconsistent with or result in any breach of any or the terms, covenants, conditions or provisions of, or constitute a default under any agreement, contract or instrument to which the bidder is a party or by which it or any of its property or assets is bound or to which it may be subject.

Annexures and Appendix

6.57 Annexure-I: Bid Covering Letter

(To be submitted on Bidder's letter head)

[To be included in Eligibility Bid Envelope]

Date:

The General Manager (RiMV) Small Industries Development Bank of India, 3rd Floor, Swavalambhan Bhavan, Plot No. C-11, G Block Bandra Kurla Complex (BKC), Bandra (E) **Mumbai – 400 051**

Dear Sir,

Appointment of consultant for Review of

IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

(RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Dated December 04, 2020)

We, the undersigned bidders, having read and examined the aforesaid RfP document in detail, do hereby propose to extend the services as specified in the above mentioned Tender document and submit the following as per requirement:

- 1. Bid Price: We have enclosed a Demand Draft/ banker's cheque of the sum of `2,000/- (Rupees Two Thousand only) towards non-refundable bid price.
- 2. Earnest Money Deposit (EMD): We have enclosed a Demand Draft / banker's cheque/ Bank Guarantee (BG) of the sum of `25,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Thousand only) towards EMD. This EMD is liable to be forfeited in accordance with the provisions mentioned in the RfP.
- 3. Minimum Eligibility bid, Commercial bid inside separate envelopes, in prescribed formats.

We hereby declare that our bid is made in good faith, without collusion or fraud and the information contained in the bid is true and correct to the best of our knowledge and belief.

Further, we agree to abide by all the terms and conditions as mentioned herein the tender document. We agree to abide by this offer till 180 days from the date of last day of submission of offer (Bid). If our offer is accepted, we undertake to provide Service support for the software supplied as per the above referred RfP, during contract period, if contracted.

We undertake that, in competing for (and, if the award is made to us, in executing) the above contract, we will strictly observe the laws against fraud and corruption in force in India namely "Prevention of Corruption Act 1988".

We also undertake to have read, understood and accepted the terms and conditions specially those related to evaluation and selection processes mentioned

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

in the RfP except the points mentioned in **Annexure-XI (Statement of deviations)** in our bid response. Having submitted our response to the aforesaid RfP, we also understand not to have any option to raise any objection against any of the said processes defined in the RfP in any future date. We understand that our bid is binding on us and persons claiming through us and that you are not bound to accept a bid you receive.

We have also noted that SIDBI reserves the right to consider / reject any or all bids without assigning any reason thereof. We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any Bid you may receive.

Thanking you,	Yours sincerely,
Date :	Signature of Authorised Signatory :
Place :	Name of the Authorised Signatory
	Designation :
	Phone & E-mail :
	Name of the Organisation :
	Seal :

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

PART- A- General Information about Bidder

S.N.	Information about the B	idder	Bidder's response	Attachment Tag
1	Name of the bidder		•	J
2	Year of establishment			
3	Type of Bidder [Government/PSU/Pub.	Ltd / Pvt. Ltd / Partnership]		
4	Registration No. and da	te of registration.		
5	Copy of Registration Ce / No)			
6	Address of Registered C	Office with contact numbers	1	
а	Address			
b	Land Line No.			
С	Fax No.			
d	Mail Id.			
7	Address of Local Office	at Mumbai with contact numi	bers [phone /fa	nx/mail]
а	Address			
b	Land Line No.			
С	Fax No.			
d	Mail Id.			
8	MSME Status (Tick appr			
а	Bidder does not qualify			
b	Bidder does qualify the			
С	SC/ST			
d	MSE registration certific			
	Chartered Accountant a	ttached. (Yes/No)		
9	PAN No.	()		
	Copy of PAN enclosed (
	GST number	e tax registration Number/		
10	Copy of Sales Tax / VAT	/ Service Tax/ GST		
	certificate enclosed. (Ye			
	Financials			
11	Parameter	FY	Amount in lakh	
а	Annual Turnover	2017 - 2018		
	(Gross Income	2018 – 2019		
	excluding other Income)	2019 - 2020		
b	Net Profit	2017 - 2018		
		2018 - 2019		
		2019 - 2020		
С	Net worth	2017 – 2018		

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020	
RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy	Page :52 of 75

S.N.	Information about the Bidder		Bidder's response	Attachment Tag
	2018 - 2019		•	3
	2019 - 2020			
d	CA certificate submitted. (Yes / No)			
12	Contact Details of Bidder's authorized representations of SIDBI. Power of attorney Annexure–VI to be submitted.			
а	Name			
b	Designation			
С	Office address			
d	Land Line No.			
е	Mobile No.			
f	Fax No.			
g	Mail Id			
13	The bidder should not have been black-list any Public Financial Institutions, Public Sec RBI or IBA or any other Government agenc during the last 03 years Self-declaration to this effect on Bidders less signed by Bidders authorized signatory as Annexure-IV to be submitted.	ctor Bank, cies etter head		
14	EMD Details			
а	DD / Pay Order / Bank Guarantee			
b	Number			
С	Date of Issue			
d	Issuing Bank			
е	Amount (Rs.)			
15	Tender Form Cost Details			
а	DD / Pay Order			
b	Number			
С	Date of Issue			
d	Issuing Bank			
е	Amount (Rs.)			

PART- B- Pre-Qualification / Minimum Eligibility Criteria

Sno	Information about the Bidder	Bidders Response	Attached Tag
16	The bidders should submit EMD as mentioned in Critical Information mentioned above	Yes / No	
17	The Company / firm should be in operation for the last 10 years (Self declaration)	Yes / No	
18	The Company / firm should be having its office at Mumbai location (Self declaration)	Yes / No	
19	The bidder should not have been black- listed by any Public Financial Institutions, Public Sector Bank, RBI or	Yes / No	

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020	
RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy	Page :53 of 75

	IBA or any other Government agencies during the last 03 years						
20	 a. Positive net worth continuously for the last three years 	Ye	es / No				
	b. Net Profit in the last three years						
21	Project Experience of the Consultant firm	n /	company:				
	<u> </u>			.		DI	
	Minimum experience of the bidder company/firm is completion of 3 Consultancy assignments. Out of the above 3 consultancy assignments at least 2 project should be pertaining to Banks / Fls.	t (Name of the Customer with contact details	Proje Deta incl. proje cost	ails ect	Please give reference (attach copy of the Purchase order as proof)	
		F	PROJECT I				
			PROJECT				
			I				
		F	PROJECT				
			II				
22	Project Experience of the resource person	ns	for this as	signm	nent	:	
	(Minimum 2 Resource Persons to be de Project Manager (APM) with details as in				nag	ger (PM), Ass	sistant
	PM should have experience of at least 8 of atleast 5 years in the areas of IT Sectithe section - Resource Replacement -Sn	urit	ty and Cyb	PM sh er Se	ould curi	d have expe ity. Please re	rience efer to
I	Project Manager (PM):						
a.	Name of the resource person						
b.	Educational qualification						
	(Identified resource person should be having i. Engineer/ PG in any discipline ii. Certification in CISA/CISSP (any one)						
C.							
0.	Number of years of experience in the areas of Cyber Security and IT Security						
	(Identified resource person should have minimum 8 years of experience)						
	Attach Proof / Evidence for the above						

II	Assistant Project Manager (APM):	
a.	Name of the resource person	
b.	Educational qualification Identified resource person should be having i. Engineer/ PG degree in any discipline	
c.	Number of years of experience in the areas of Cyber Security and IT Security (Identified resource person should have minimum 5 years of experience) Attach Proof / Evidence for the above	

Date: _	
(Signature	of Authorised Signatory)
Designation	n :
Phone & E-	mail :
Name of th	e Organisation :

Seal:

Note:

- Bidder response should be complete with all relevant documents attached.
- Documentary proof, sealed and signed by authorized signatory, must be submitted.
- Details of clients and relevant contact details are mandatory. Bidders may take necessary approval of the clients in advance before submission of related information. SIDBI will not make any separate request for submission of such information.
- SIDBI will contact the bidder referenced customer for verifications of facts, the bidder to ensure that the customer is intimated. Further in case SIDBI feels to visit the reference site, the bidder to take necessary approvals for the same. SIDBI will not make any separate request to the bidders customers.
- Proposal of the bidders are liable to be rejected in case of incomplete information or wrong information or non-submission of documentary proof.

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020	
RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy	Page :55 of 75

[To be included in Eligibility Bid Envelope]

Proposals of bidders not complying with the 'Eligibility criteria' or who fail to submit documentary evidence thereon are liable to be rejected and will not be considered for further evaluation.

The proposal of the bidder should adhere to the following Eligibility Criteria.

Government Organization / Public Sector Unit / Partnership Firm / LLP / Private Limited Company / Public Limited Company / Public Limited Company Registered or Incorporation Registration certificat Self declaration on the last 10 years. Self declaration on the letter head signed by POA The Bidder should have a a. Positive net worth continuously for the last three years b.Net Profit in the last three years. The Bidder should be having its office at Mumbai The Bidder must have completed 3 Consultancy assignments pertaining to Cyber Security and IT Security. Out of the		npliance s/ No]	Attachment Tag ^{\$\$}
The Bidder should have a a.Positive net worth continuously for the last three years b.Net Profit in the last three years. 4 The Bidder should be having its office at Mumbai 5 The Bidder must have completed 3 Consultancy assignments pertaining to Cyber Security and IT Security. Out of the above 3 consultancy assignments at least 2 project should be pertaining to Banks / Fls. 6 The bidder should not have been black-listed by The Bidder should be pertaining to Cyber Security and IT Security. Out of the above 3 consultancy assignments at least 2 project should be pertaining to Banks / Fls. Self declaration of the Letter head signed by Ealance Sheet for for FY 18, FY 19 and FY 20 Self declaration of the Letter head signed by Ealance Sheet for for FY 18, FY 19 and FY 20 Copy of work order along with completion certificate for completed project. Completed project completed project completed project indicate the date of implementation sign off of the solution.	of / te		
a.Positive net worth continuously for the last three years b.Net Profit in the last three years. 4 The Bidder should be having its office at Mumbai 5 The Bidder must have completed 3 Consultancy assignments pertaining to Cyber Security and IT Security. Out of the above 3 consultancy assignments at least 2 project should be pertaining to Banks / Fls. 6 The bidder should not have been black-listed by			
The Bidder should be having its office at Mumbai The Bidder must have completed 3 Consultancy assignments pertaining to Cyber Security and IT Security. Out of the above 3 consultancy assignments at least 2 project should be pertaining to Banks / Fls. The Bidder must have completed on Bidder Letterhead Copy of work order along with completion certificate for completed project: Completion certificate issued by the customer must indicate the date of implementation sign off of the solution. The bidder should not have been black-listed by	or		
having its office at Mumbai The Bidder should be having its office at Mumbai The Bidder must have completed 3 Consultancy assignments pertaining to Cyber Security and IT Security. Out of the above 3 consultancy assignments at least 2 project should be pertaining to Banks / Fls. The Bidder should have been black-listed by Self declaration with contact details of the contact details of the Bidder on Bidder Letterhead Copy of work order along with completion certificate for completed project. Completion certificate issued by the customer must indicate the date of implementation sign off of the solution.			
completed 3 Consultancy assignments pertaining to Cyber Security and IT Security. Out of the above 3 consultancy assignments at least 2 project should be pertaining to Banks / Fls. The bidder should not have been black-listed by completed project: Completion certificate issued by the customer must indicate the date of implementation sign off of the solution.	he		
have been black-listed by regarding Clean Trac	on for ts. te he ist of		
Institutions, Public Sector Annexure-IV enclosed Bank, RBI or IBA or any	ck at		
RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December O		r Soqueiti	Page :56 of 75

Sr. No.	Criteria	Documents to be submitted as a	Compliance [Yes/ No]	Attachment Tag ^{\$\$}
		proof/declaration	[9
	other Government agencies during the last 03 years			
7	The bidder should deploy Minimum 2 Resource Persons (Project Manager (PM), Assistant Project Manager (APM) with details as indicated below).	qualifications/ certifications/		
	i. PM should have experience of at least 8 years and			
	ii. APM should have experience of atleast 5 years			
	in the areas of Cyber Security and IT Security			
8	The bidders should submit EMD as mentioned in Critical Information mentioned above	DD/Cheque/ Bank Guarantee should be submitted as mentioned in the Critical Information mentioned above		
9	The bidder should submit Certificate of Incorporation / Registration certificate	Certificate of Incorporation / Registration certificate		
15	The bidder should submit Certificate of MSME Registartion	Registartion		
16	The bidders should submit copy of PAN CARD / Copy of Sales Tax / VAT / Service Tax/ GST certificate	Copy of PAN card/Sales Tax / VAT / Service Tax/ GST certificate with self attestation		
17	The bidder should nominate a Power of attorney and submit a proof of the same	As per format given in Annexure-VI to be submitted.		
18	Furnish a proof of Address of Registered Office with contact numbers	Latest current bill / telephone bill		

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020	
RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy	Page :57 of 75

Signature of Authorised Signatory
Seal of the Organisation

\$\$ Documents submitted with response bid towards proof of evidence must be suitably tagged for easy identification during evaluation.

6.60 Annexure-IV: Declaration Regarding Clean Track Record

(To be submitted on Bidder's letter head)

Date:

The General Manager (RiMV)
Small Industries Development Bank of India,
Swavalamban Bhavan,
3rd Floor, MSME Development Centre,
Plot No. C-11, G Block
Bandra Kurla Complex (BKC), Bandra (E)
Mumbai – 400 051

Dear Sir,

Declaration Regarding Clean Track Record

Appointment of Consultant for

Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

(RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Dated December 04, 2020)

I have carefully gone through the Terms & Conditions contained in the RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy (RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Dated December 04, 2020).

We hereby declare that our company/firm has not been debarred/ black listed by any PSU, Public Sector Bank, RBI, IBA or any other Government / Semi Government organizations in India as on the date of bid submission. I further certify that I am competent authority in my company/firm to make this declaration that our bid is binding on us and persons claiming through us and that you are not bound to accept a bid you receive.

We also declare that we are not engaged by SIDBI for providing services like system integration or supplying of software / hardware. We are also not OEM of any related product.

Thanking you,

Yours sincerely,

Date	Signature of Authorised Signatory
Place	Name of the Authorised Signatory
	ů ,
	Designation
	ŭ
	Name of the Organisation
	3
	Seal

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security

Page :59 of 75

6.61 Annexure-V: Letter of Competence

(To be executed on a non judicial stamp paper of requisite value)

Appointment of Consultant for review of

IT Security and Cyber Security Policies of the Bank

(RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Dated December 04, 2020)

This is to certify that we[Insert name of Bidder], address......are fully competent to undertake and successfully Consultancy for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy solution as per scope mentioned in the above RfP. This bid is being submitted after fully understanding the objectives of the project and requirements of providing services as mentioned in the captioned RfP.

We certify that the quality and number of resources to be deployed by us for the Consultacny for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy will be adequate to deliver the services professionally and competently within the prescribed time frame.

We also certify that all the information given by us in response to this RfP is true and correct.

Consultacny for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

Thanking you,

Yours sincerely,

Date	Signature of Authorised Signatory
Place	Name of the Authorised Signatory
	Designation
	Name of the Organisation
	Seal

6.62 Annexure-VI : Power of Attorney

(To be executed on a non judicial stamp paper of requisite value)

Appointment of Consultant for review of

IT Security and Cyber Security Policies of the Bank

(RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Dated December 04, 2020)

BY THIS POWER OF ATTORNEY executed at on	
2020, We,, a Company incorporated under the Companies	Act,
1956, having its Registered Office at (hereinafter refe	rred
to as "the Company") doth hereby nominate, constitute and appoint < Nam	ıe>,
< Employee no. >, < Designation > of the Company, as its duly constituted Attori	ney,
in the name and on behalf of the Company to do and execute any or all of	the
following acts, deeds, matters and things, namely :-	
Execute and submit on behalf of the Company a Proposal and other paper documents with 'Small Industries Development Bank of India' ("SIDBI") relating Request for proposal (RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Dated December 2020) for 'Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cysecurity Policy' and to attend meetings and hold discussions on behalf of Company with SIDBI in this regard.	g to 04, yber
THE COMPANY DOTH hereby agree to ratify and confirm all whatsoever attorney shall lawfully do or cause to be done under or by virtue of these preseincluding anything done after revocation hereof but prior to actual or exploit thereof being received by the person or persons for the time being deal with the attorney hereunder.	ents ress
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, has caused these presents to	b be
executed by on the day, month and year mention	
hereinabove.	
For and on behalf of the Board of Director	s of
WITNESS:	
Signature of	
Attes	sted
RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020	
RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy Page :61 of 7	15

(To be submitted on Bidder's letter head)

Date:

The General Manager (RiMV)
Small Industries Development Bank of India,
3rd Floor, MSME Development Centre,
Plot No. C-11, G Block
Bandra Kurla Complex (BKC), Bandra (E)
Mumbai – 400 051

Dear Sir,

Appointment of Consultant for

Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

(RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Dated December 04, 2020)

We, the undersigned bidders, having read and examined the aforesaid RfP document, issued by SIDBI and hereinafter referred as 'Bank' do hereby covenant, warrant and confirm as follows:

We hereby agree to comply with all the terms and conditions / stipulations as contained in the RfP and the related addendums and other documents including the changes made to the original tender documents issued by the bank, provided however that only the list of deviations furnished by us in **Annexure-XII** of the main RfP document which are explicitly clarified by the Bank and communicated to us in writing, shall form a valid and binding part of the aforesaid RfP document. The Bank is not bound by any other extraneous matters or deviations, even if mentioned by us elsewhere either in our proposal or any subsequent deviations sought by us, whether orally or in writing, and the Bank's decision not to accept any such extraneous conditions and deviations will be final and binding on us and persons claiming through us.

We also here by confirm that our prices as specified in our Commercial Bid are as per the Payment terms specified in the Tender document.

Thanking you,

Yours sincerely,

Date	Signature of Authorised Signatory	
Place	Name of the Authorised Signatory	
	RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020	

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

Page :62 of 75

Designation
Name of the Organisation
Seal

6.64 Annexure-VIII - Bank Guarantee

Appointment of consultant for **Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy**

(RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Dated December 04, 2020)

(Sample Format - TO BE EXECUTED ON A NON-JUDICIAL STAMPED PAPER)

To: SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
WHEREAS (Name of Vendor) (Name of Vendor) (hereinafter called the 'the Vendor") has undertaken, in pursuance of (RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Dated December 04, 2020) to supply (Description of Products and Services) (Herein after called the 'the RfP") to you.
AND WHEREAS, it has been stipulated by you in the said RfP that the Vendor shall furnish you with a Bank Guarantee from a commercial Bank for the sum specified therein, as security for compliance with the Vendor's performance obligations in accordance with the RfP.
AND WHEREAS weBank having its registered office at and interalia a branch office situate at have agreed to give a performance guarantee in lieu of EMD of ` (Rupees only) on behalf of the Vendor.
WeBank further undertake not to revoke and make ineffective the guarantee during it's currency except with the previous consent of the buyer in writing.
We Bank do hereby unconditionally and irrevocably undertake to pay to SIDBI without any demur or protest, merely on demand from SIDBI, an amount not exceeding Rs (only).by reason of any breach of the terms of the RfP dated by vendor. We hereby agree that the decision of the SIDBI regarding breach of the terms of the RfP shall be final, conclusive and binding
WE do hereby guarantee and undertake to pay forthwith on demand to SIDBI as sum not exceeding `
Our obligation to make payment under this Guarantee shall be a primary, independent and absolute obligation and we shall not be entitled to delay or withhold payment for any reason. Our obligations becounder shall not be affected

withhold payment for any reason. Our obligations hereunder shall not be affected by any act, omission, matter or thing which but for this provision might operate to

release or otherwise exonerate us from our obligations hereunder in whole or in part, including and whether or not known to us or you:

- 1. Any time or waiver granted to the vendor;
- 2. The taking, variation, compromise, renewal or release of or refusal or neglect to perfect or enforce any rights, remedies or securities against the vendor;
- 3. Any Variation of or amendment to the RfP or any other document or security so that references to the Contract in this Guarantee shall include each such Variation and amendment;
- 4. any unenforceability, invalidity or frustration of any obligation of the VENDOR or any other person under the RfP or any other document or security waiver by you of any of the terms provisions conditions obligations UNDER RfP or any failure to make demand upon or take action against the VENDOR:
- 5. any other fact, circumstance, provision of statute or rule of law which might, were our liability to be secondary rather than primary, entitle us to be released in whole or in part from our undertaking; and;
- 6. any change in constitution of the vendor;
- 7. any petition for the winding up of the VENDOR has been admitted and a liquidator or provisional liquidator has been appointed or an order of bankruptcy or an order for the winding up or dissolution of the vendor has been made by a Court of competent jurisdiction;

The written demand referred to in paragraph above shall be deemed to be sufficiently served on us if you deliver to us at the address as set out in paragraph 3.

3.
This guarantee is valid until the day of And a claim in writing is required to be presented to us within three months from i.e. on or before all your rights will be forfeited and we shall be relieved of and discharged from all our liabilities mentioned hereinabove.
Signature and Seal of Guarantors (Vendor's Bank)
Date
Address
Addi 033 mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

6.65 Annexure-IX: Non-Disclosure Agreement

(Sample Format – To be executed on a non-judicial stamped paper of requisite value)

WHEREAS, we,	, having Registered Office at
	, hereinafter referred to as the COMPANY, are
agreeable to execute "Appointme	nt of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy
and Cyber Security Policy" as per	scope defined in the Request for Proposal (RfP
No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Da	ted December 04, 2020) for Small Industries
Development Bank of India, having	g its Head office at SIDBI Tower, 15 Ashok Marg,
Lucknow, 226001, and office at,	Swavalamban Bhavan, Plot No. C-11, G Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex (BKC), Bandra Complex (dra (E), Mumbai - 400 051 (hereinafter referred
to as the BANK) and,	

WHEREAS, the COMPANY understands that the information regarding the Bank's Infrastructure shared by the BANK in their Request for Proposal is confidential and/or proprietary to the BANK, and

WHEREAS, the COMPANY understands that in the course of submission of the offer for the said RfP and/or in the aftermath thereof, it may be necessary that the COMPANY may perform certain jobs/duties on the Bank's properties and/or have access to certain plans, documents, approvals, data or information of the BANK;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the COMPANY agrees to all of the following conditions, in order to induce the BANK to grant the COMPANY specific access to the BANK's property/information, etc.;

The COMPANY will not publish or disclose to others, nor, use in any services that the COMPANY performs for others, any confidential or proprietary information belonging to the BANK, unless the COMPANY has first obtained the BANK's written 66uthorization to do so;

The COMPANY agrees that information and other data shared by the BANK or, prepared or produced by the COMPANY for the purpose of submitting the offer to the BANK in response to the said RfP, will not be disclosed to during or subsequent to submission of the offer to the BANK, to anyone outside the BANK;

The COMPANY shall not, without the BANK's written consent, disclose the contents of this Request for Proposal (Bid) or any provision thereof, or any specification, document, plan, pattern, sample or information (to be) furnished or shared by or on behalf of the BANK in connection therewith, to any person(s) other than those employed/engaged by the COMPANY for the purpose of submitting the offer to the BANK and/or for the performance of the Contract in the aftermath. Disclosure to

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020	
RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of Cyber Security and IT Security Policies of the Bank	Page :66 of 75

RFP FOR APPOINTMENT OF CONSULTANT FOR REVIEW OF IT SECURITY AND CYBER SECURITY POLICY



any employed/engaged person(s) shall be made in confidence and shall extend only so far as necessary for the purposes of such performance.

Yours sincerely,

Date	Signature of Authorised Signatory
Place	Name of the Authorised Signatory
	Designation
	Name of the Organisation
	Seal



6.66 Annexure-X: Bank Mandate Form

3. Particulars of Bank account:

(To be submitted in Duplicate)

(Please fill in the information in CAPITAL LETTERS. Please TICK wherever it is applicable)

1.	. Name of Borrower / vendor / supplier:			
				
Ve	ndor Code (if applicable)			
2.	. Address of the Borrower / vendor / supplier:			
	-			
	-			
	City	_ Pin Code		
	E-mail id:			
	Phone No. with STD cod	e:		
	Mobile No.:			
	Permanent Account Nur	mber	-	
	MSE Registration / CA C	ertificate	(if applicable)	

RFP FOR APPOINTMENT OF CONSULTANT FOR REVIEW OF IT SECURITY AND CYBER SECURITY POLICY



Beneficiary									
Name									
Bank Name			Brand						
			Name						
Branch Place			Brand	chCity	y				
PIN Code			Brand	ch					
			Code						
MICR No.									
Account type	Saving		Curre	ent	Cas	h Cre	edit		
Account No.	(as appearing in book)	·							
attach a cance	r appearing on the elled cheque of you & code and Accou	ur bank for en							
	For RTGS		For NI	EFT					-
	transfer	1	transf	er					
If any transact information, I advise any cha	declare that the post on is delayed or not hold SID nge in the particul credit of amount t	ot effected for DBI / IDBI Banl ars of my acco	r reas k resp ount to	ons o onsil o faci	f incor ble. I	nplet also	te or und	incoı ertak	rrect
Place: Date :									
Signature of th	e party / Authorize	ed Signatory							
 Certified that p	particulars furnishe	ed above are o	correc	t as p	oer our	reco	ords.		
Bank's stamp:									
Date :									
	(Sig	gnature of the	Autho	orized	d Offici	al fro	om th	ne Ba	nks)

N.B.: RTGS/NEFT charges if any, is to be borne by the party

^{1, 2}: Note on IFSC / MICR

Indian Financial System Code (IFSC) is an alpha numeric code designed to uniquely identify the bank-branches in India. This is 11 digit code with first 4 characters representing the bank's code, the next character reserved as control character

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020	
RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy	Page :69 of 75

RFP FOR APPOINTMENT OF CONSULTANT FOR REVIEW OF IT SECURITY AND CYBER SECURITY POLICY



(presently 0 appears in the fifth position) and remaining 6 characters to identify the branch. The MICR code, (Magnetic Ink Character Recognition) that appears on cheques, has 9 digits to identify the bank-branch. RBI had since advised all the banks to print IFSC on cheque leaves issued to their customers. A customer may also contact his bank-branch and get the IFS Code of that branch.



6.67 Annexure–XI: Statement of Deviations

(To be submitted on Bidder's letter head)
Appointment of Consultant for
Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

(RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Dated December 04, 2020)

Bidders are required to provide details of all deviations, comments and observations or suggestions in the following format with seal and signature. You are also requested to provide a reference of the page number, state the clarification point and the comment/ suggestion/ deviation that you propose as shown below.

SIDBI does not entertain deviation in Scope of Work and may at its sole discretion accept or reject all or any of the deviations, however it may be noted that the acceptance or rejection of any deviation by SIDBI will not entitle the bidder to submit a revised commercial bid.

Further, any deviation mentioned elsewhere in the response other than in this format shall not be considered as deviation by SIDBI.

List of Deviations

S. N.	Clarification point as stated in the tender document	Page / Section Number in RfP	Comment/ Suggestion/ Deviation
1.			
2.			
3			

<additional rows may be added, if required>

Date	Signature of Authorised Signatory:
Place	Name of the Authorised Signatory:
	Designation:
	Name of the Organisation:
	Seal:

RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Issued on: December 04, 2020

RfP for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security

Page:71 of 75



6.68 Annexure–XII: Resource Credentials

Table 6-1 Resource Credentials for Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy

Srl. No.	Roles	Name	Academic & Professional Qualification	Work experience	No. Of Projects handled	Relevant work experience	Remark

Bidders are requested to use the above format to provide details of resource credentials proposed to be associated with the implementation of proposed solution in the Bank. Documentary proof along with complete details of the work carried out in the implementation including experience in Banking processes and knowledge of RBI guidelines should be submitted in detail as separate **annexures** in the response.



6.69 Annexure-XIII: Undertaking for Central Minimum Wages Act & Labour Laws

(To be submitted on Bidder's letter head, duly signed by authorized signatory)

To
The General Manager, RiMV
Small Industries Development Bank of India
Swavalamban Bhavan, 3rd Floor
Plot No.C-11, G Block
BandraKurla Complex
Bandra [East]

Mumbai 400 051

Dear Sir,	
Further to our proposal datedfor Proposal (Bank's tender No as "RFP") issued by Bank, we hereby covena	hereinafter referred to

- We hereby agree to comply with all the terms and conditions / stipulations as contained in the RFP and the related addendums and other documents including the changes made to the original tender documents if any, issued by the Bank.
- 2. We ensure that the payment towards services is in consonance with the Central Minimum Wages Act &Labour Laws. We would comply with Governments rules and regulations like minimum wages act, Provident fund and ESIC facility standard for the employees / resources deployed by usonsite for the said project.
- 3. Proof of compliance and labour license are attached with herewith.

Date	Signature of Authorized Signatory
Place	Name of the Authorized Signatory
	Designation
	Phone & E-mail:
Seal	Name of the Organization



6.70 Annexure-XIV Undertaking Letter for GST Law

(To be submitted on Bidder's letter head, duly signed by authorized signatory)

GST Law

To

The General Manager, RiMV Small Industries Development Bank of India Swavalamban Bhavan, 3rd Floor Plot No.C-11, G Block BandraKurla Complex Bandra [East]

Mumbai 400 051

Dear Sir,

for Proposal (Bank's tender N	, in response to the Request o hereinafter referred to hereby covenant, warrant and confirm as follows:
applicable GST Laws including	, hereby agree to comply with all g GST Acts, Rules, Regulations, Procedures, Circulars blicable in India from time to time and to ensure that
Date	Signature of Authorized Signatory
Place	Name of the Authorized Signatory
	Designation
	Phone & E-mail:
Seal	Name of the Organization



6.71 Annexure-XV: Commercial Bid

Appointment of Consultant for Review of IT Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy (RfP No: 400/2021/1592/BYO/RiMD Dated December 04, 2020) (To be submitted on Vendor's letter head)

Amount In Rupees

Sr No	Basic Cost	GST	Total
	A	В	C=A+B
1			
2	Total Amount		

Note:

- 1. The Commercial bid should be submitted in a non-window sealed envelope.
- 2. Prices quoted above shall be valid throughout the bid validity period.
- 3. Prices shall be in conformity to the scope of the work.
- 4. No terms and conditions should be stipulated in the Commercial bid, which is meant only for the quotation of offer price / rate.
- 5. The prices quoted would include all costs such as GST, accommodation, travel ticket, airfares, train fares, halting expenses, transport, lodging, boarding etc., that need to be incurred.
- 6. No additional cost whatsoever would be paid.

Date	Signature of Authorised Signatory
Place	Name of the Authorised Signatory
	Designation
	Name of the Organisation
	Seal